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in Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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Chairman’s
Statement
EFHRES

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to present to shareholders the
annual report of VST Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

AANBREESRORRRARS BHERE
RAR(ARR)REMEL R (GBI AEE)
BE-®——F+-A=+-ALFEZFH-

2011 has been a challenging year. We had the earthquake and tsunami in
Japan and the floods in Thailand resulted in supply chain disruptions to the
electronics industry. We also have uncertainty surrounded the Eurozone debt
crisis. Despite these challenges, we have continued to grow our business and
strengthen our relationships with our vendors, customers and bankers. We
have continued to widen our product range, enlarge our distribution network
and improve our operational efficiency.

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
HK$32,617,058,000 (2010: HK$26,212,600,000). Gross profit for the year
ended 31 December 2011 amounted to HK$1,513,443,000 (2010:
HK$1,152,535,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to HK$488,794,000 (2010: HK$408,058,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to HK36.80 cents (2010:
HK29.41 cents) per share.
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The Group has achieved another set of excellent results for the year, AEBEEBE—FHERNSEHAKE -8
Leveraging on our diversified products and strong distribution network, the % Tt ERABE A MB AN D MK K&
Group further improved its product range and expanded its distribution HE—TELILEMBEMBERSARAED#HE
channels in Asia Pacific. The Group has strong distribution networks with over &« KR E B R SEBRR(BHETEH HTH - 5
25,000 business partners in six countries, including China, Thailand, Malaysia, 2K Pa 25 ~ 3Tl - ENE RIFER B ) B HE R A
Singapore, Indonesia and the Philippines, and our businesses have also #4845 & £ B HBIB25000EX£HEH - W
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHREEE)

PROSPECTS

The economic uncertainty and supply chain disruptions will continue to
impact spending on technology products in the coming months. However,
we expect the usage of IT products will continue to penetrate all the markets
in which we have operations, resulting in steady continue growth in the long
run. Market penetration of computers in China is still low with tremendous
potential for growth. The Group plans to continue to strengthen its foothold
in the China market, capitalising on our expanding product mix, our
comprehensive sales network and dynamic marketing strategy. With good
growth in 2011, we have also consolidated our foundation in our South East
Asia markets. With our experienced management team, the Group will
continue to look for opportunities to work with world famous IT suppliers and
continue to expand our product mix and sales channels so to achieve

excellent results.

Lastly, | would like to thank our shareholders for their loyal support for the
Group. | would also like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff for their whole-hearted devotion and passion
towards their duties and to thank our Board members and business partners
for their trust and support. We are confident in overcoming the challenges

ahead and will strive our best to maximize returns for our shareholders.

Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
HK$32,617,058,000 (2010: HK$26,212,600,000). The Group has shown
strong growth in the distribution segment, driven by increased sales of media
tablets, desktops, notebooks, CPUs and hard disks. In the enterprise
systems segment, due to the strong demand last year, FY2011 was relatively
weaker, impacted by slower demand in IT infrastructure tools, such as
servers, databases and storage products.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
HK$1,513,443,000 (2010: HK$1,152,535,000). Operating profit for the year
ended 31 December 2011 amounted to HK$700,643,000 (2010:
HK$540,996,000). Net profit for the year ended 31 December 2011
amounted to HK$488,794,000 (2010: HK$408,058,000). Basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to HK36.80 cents (2010:
HK29.41 cents) per share.

The Group has continuously aimed to widen our product range in order to
provide more choices to our customers. Our extensive and diversified product
lines now include HP, Apple, Seagate, AMD, Intel, Western Digital, Lenovo,
Dell, IBM, Acer, Microsoft, Oracle, Cisco, Asus and many more.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
BEENRE D (&)

Prospects

With projected double digit growth for our markets in China and South East
Asia, the Group expects to continue growth in the coming year. We will look
to further expand our product portfolio, especially in tablets and smartphone
products. With the expertise of our experienced management team and
extensive and diversified product lines and distribution network, we are in an
excellent position to continue to focus on the potential growth of the Group.
The Group aims to achieve consistent and healthy operating margin and
maximise shareholders’ return.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
HK$1,573,134,000 (2010: HK$1,015,251,000).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s borrowings amounted to
HK$1,870,974,000 (2010: HK$1,773,400,000). The gearing ratio, calculated
as borrowings less cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity, was 0.11
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 0.33).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group recorded total current assets of
HK$7,743,552,000 (2010: HK$7,165,232,000) and total current liabilities of
HK$4,999,907,000 (2010: HK$4,901,534,000). The current ratio of the
Group, calculated by dividing the total current assets by the total current
liabilities, was 1.55 times as at 31 December 2011 (2010: 1.46 times).

The Group recorded an increase in shareholders’ funds from
HK$2,326,332,000 as at 31 December 2010 to HK$2,797,229,000 as at 31
December 2011.

° VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore, Thailand, Malaysia, Indonesia and the Philippines. The bank
borrowings of the Group are predominantly subject to floating interest rates.

Cash and bank deposits of the Group are mainly denominated in United
States dollars, Renminbi and Singapore dollars.

Transactions of the Group are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars, Renminbi, Singapore dollars and Thailand baht.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases as set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have contingent liabilities.

Employees

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has 2,375 (2010: 2,243) full time
employees.

The Group remunerated its employees mainly based on industry practice,
individual’s performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible employees
by reference to the Group performance as well as individual performance.
Other benefits include medical, annual leave and retirement schemes. The net
total remuneration paid for the year ended 31 December 2011 amounted to
HK$444,282,000 (2010: HK$375,770,000). The Group also provides training
courses or seminars to its staff.

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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Corporate Governance Report

&% BREE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company endeavours to attain high standards of corporate governance
practices to enhance and maintain shareholder value and investor confidence.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has complied
with the code provisions on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”) except for code provision A.2.1.

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and
CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Li Jialin, one of the founders of the Group, currently holds the offices of
Chairman and CEO. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and CEO in the same person will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Directors and the management of Company and
considers that this structure will enable the Group to make and implement
decisions promptly and effectively. The Directors will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company.

The Company will continue to review and improve its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that its corporate governance practices
comply with the regulatory requirements and appropriate for the needs of its
business.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarised as follows:

The Board

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board,
which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors should take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions on all major matters of the Company,
including: the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with a
view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each Director is able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the
Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has full support of the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
necessary for its independent judgement and fulfilling its business needs.

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of four executive
Directors, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERHRS ()

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin

Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xianggian

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director on 23 March 2011)

Ms. Liu Li (Appointed on 8 June 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors

Chairman of Audit Committee and member of
Remuneration Committee

Chairman of Remuneration Committee and
member of Audit Committee

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Ng Yat Cheung Member of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee

(Appointed on 27 September 2011)

Mr. Ni Zhenwei (Deceased on 25 July 2011)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from
time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of technical,
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent judgement to
the Board. Through their active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

Each executive Director of the Company has entered a service contract with
the Company. For Mr. Li Jialin, his term of appointment is renewable for
successive years of one year each commencing from the day immediately
after the expiry of the current term of the service contract unless and until
terminated by either party by not less than three months’ notice in writing.
Other executive Directors are appointed with no specific term and shall
continue unless terminated by a specific months of notice in writing. For other
non-executive Directors, the Company has issued appointment letters to
them and they are subject to re-election or retirement by rotation according
to the Company’s Articles and Association.

Under the service agreements, the initial annual emoluments of each
executive Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will
be reviewed by the Board each year.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of Association. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, all Directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new Directors
appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment of Directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Liu Li
and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire from office and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Hoi Chau, Mr. Mao Xianggian and Dr. Chan Po Fun,
Peter will retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Board
recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Company’s
circular contains detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Training for Directors

Each of the newly appointed Directors receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments,
and the business and market chances to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefings and professional development to
Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Board Meetings

Directors’ Attendance and Number of Meetings
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2011 is set out below:
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Attendance/ HERBT
Directors Number of Meetings E= BB
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Jialin 6/6 EEMTAE 6/6
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William 6/6 FEMTEE 6/6
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau 6/6  BREIMNEE 6/6
Mr. Mao Xiangajian 5/6 EMAIEE 5/6
Non-executive Directors kHITES
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 6/6  Eiok AN A 6/6

(Re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director on 23 March 2011)
Ms. Liu Li 3/3
(Appointed on 8 June 2011)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 6/6

Mr. Li Wei 6/6

Mr. Ng Yat Cheung 11
(Appointed on 27 September 2011)

Mr. Ni Zhenwei 3/3

(Deceased on 25 July 2011)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to Directors in advance. Notices of Board meetings are served
to all Directors in accordance with the CG Code before the meetings.
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Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of
the Company normally attend all regular Board meetings and when
necessary, other committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comment within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director, will
be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the
quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or any
of their associates have a material interest.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

The Company also has established a written guideline on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for governing the securities transactions by
employees who are likely to be possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-compliance
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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Board Committees

The Board has established two committees, namely the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are available upon request.

The members of each Board committee are independent non-executive
Directors and the list of the Chairman and members of each Board committee
is set out under the headline of “Composition” of “The Board” of the
Corporate Governance report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors
(including one independent non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee are a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant or
external auditors before submission to the Board.

(b)  To review the relationship with the external auditors by reference to the
work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

(c)  To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management system
and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2011 to review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, and the re-appointment of the external auditors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetingsis setout JKEHEBZEZE @@ N BE REHI W T :
below:

Attendance/ HE

Number of Meetings BITEERHY

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter (Chairman) 22 BREFEBLE(EXE) 2/2

Mr. Li Wei 2/2 =Y e 2/2

Mr. Ni Zhenwei 71 REEEER-T——F 1/1

(Deceased on 25 July 2011) + A -+ A BEE)
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung NA SHEEAE(R_ZT——%F i@ A

(Appointed on 27 September 2011)

There is no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2011 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration of the executive
Directors and for fixing the remuneration packages of all the Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
ensuring the remuneration packages are sufficient to attract and retain the
Directors for running the Company successfully; avoiding over-paying and
that no Directors or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration. The remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets during the year for reviewing
the policy, structure and related matters of the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management. The human resources
department is responsible for collection and administration of the human
resources data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee will consult the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer about their recommendations on
remuneration policy, structure and related matters of remuneration packages.

One Remuneration Committee meeting has been held during the year ended
31 December 2011 to review (a) whether the remuneration package of the
directors and senior management are reasonable; (b) the basis of the
remuneration package, i.e. qualification, working experience and market level
of comparable position etc. to see whether any improvements needed to be
made.

The attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting
is set out below:
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Attendance/ HES

Number of Meetings BITERINRH

Mr. Li Wei (Chairman) 11 FREE(EE) 1/1

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 171 BRESEL 1/1
Mr. Ni Zhenwei RIREAENR T ——F

(Deceased on 25 July 2011) N/A t A+ A BB i
Mr. Ng Yat Cheung RAERERZ=ZZE—F

(Appointed on 27 September 2011) N/A NAZ+EREZME) N3

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements and Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive information
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report”.
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The Company’s external auditors are KPMG. The Group was charged
approximately HK$4,423,000 and HK$1,350,000 by KPMG for auditing and
non-auditing services respectively for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system
to safeguard shareholder investments and the Company’s assets, and
reviewing the effectiveness of such on a semi-annual basis through the Audit
Committee.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure with defined
lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management.

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The internal control framework also
provides for identification and management of risk.

The management also conducts periodic independent reviews on the
operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and risks,
develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified risks,
and reports to the Audit Committee on any key findings. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Directors have conducted an annual review of the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staffing of the financial reporting function as
well as the oversight role of the Audit Committee and consider that the
existing internal control system of the Group is effective and adequate.
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Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of
the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner. To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at www.vst.com.hk, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.

According to the amendments of the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January
2009, all resolutions proposed at shareholders’ meeting of listed issuers will
be voted by poll. The poll results shall be posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jialin, aged 50, is one of the founders of the
Group and is the Company’s Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer and Executive Director. He is also
the director of VST Group Limited (BVI) and VST
Computers (H.K.) Limited and Chairman of ECS
Technology (China) Limited, all are the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Li was also the Chairman and
non-executive Director of ECS Holdings Limited from
2008 to September 2010, a subsidiary of the
Company, which is a public listed company on the
main board of the Singapore Stock Exchange (“ECS”). He is responsible for
the overall management and strategic positioning of the Group. Mr. Li
graduated from Tsinghua University of the People’s Republic of China with a
Degree of Bachelor of Engineering in 1983 and a Master Degree in
Management Engineering in 1986. He is the spouse of Ms. Liu Li, an Non-
executive Director of the Company.

Mr. ONG Wei Hiam, William, aged 40, is the
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company. Mr. Ong is also the non-executive Director
of ECS. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Economics
from University College London and a Master Degree
in Analysis, Design & Management of Information
Systems from the London School of Economics and
Political Science. He is a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Ong served in a senior
position at PricewaterhouseCoopers and has extensive working experience in
London and Hong Kong.

Mr. CHAN Hoi Chau, aged 42, appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
holds a Bachelor Degree in Electrical Engineering
from the University of Wisconsin-Madison in the
United States of America. Mr. Chan has over 15
years of experience in personal computer and
semiconductor industry. Mr. Chan is currently the
Vice President of sales of VST Computers (H.K.)
Limited, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. Prior to joining the Company in May
2005, Mr. Chan served as the Distribution Director of Advanced Micro
Devices and was in charge of the distribution business in China and Hong
Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
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HITES

E@MAILE 465 R_ZEENFLHAREZE

Executive Directors

Mr. MAO Xianggian, aged 46, appointed as an

Executive Director of the Company in July 2009. He
is also an Executive Director of ECS. He is also the
Chief Executive Officer of ECS Technology (China)
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company. He has more
than 20 years experience in China’s IT industry. Mr.
Mao holds a Bachelor and a Master Degree both in
Mechanical Engineering from the Tian Jin University.
Mr. Mao also holds an Executive MBA (EMBA) from
the China Europe International Business School.
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Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Mao served as the Senior Vice President of
Digital China Holdings Limited (“DC Holdings”) and as a Director (Vice
President) of Digital China Technology Limited (“DC Technology”)
simultaneously and was in charge of the distribution business in both DC
Holdings and DC Technology.
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Non-Executive Directors EHITESE

Mr. TAY Eng Hoe, aged 60, is the Non-executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company. He
joined the Company in January 2008. He is also the
Non-executive Chairman of ECS and the Director of
ECS ICT Berhad, an associate of the Company,
which is a public listed company on the main board
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. He is the
founder of ECS Group and brings with him more
than 25 years of experience in the IT business. In
2005, Mr. Tay was conferred the Public Services
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Medal by the President of the Republic of Singapore in recognition of his 2 ©
public services to Singapore. He holds a Bachelor degree in Science (Honours)
from the LaTrobe University and a Master degree in Business Administration

from the University of Melbourne.

Ms. LIU Li, aged 48, appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2011. Ms. Liu was
one of the founders of the Group and had been
responsible for the overall operations of the Group’s
business in the mainland China from 1991 to 1999
before the Company was listed on The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
2002. Ms. Liu holds a bachelor degree in Beijing
Construction Engineering University. She is the spouse
of Mr. Li Jialin, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. CHAN Po Fun Peter BBS, MBE, JP, FHKICPA,
FCPA (Aust.), aged 90, practised accountancy in
Hong Kong for 60 years. He has a doctorate in
Offshore Petroleum Technology and Modern Chinese
Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for
Underwater Technology. Dr. Chan is a trustee of
Hong Kong Shue Yan University (also as its Research
Professor) and the United College of Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of
the Kowloon Stock Exchange, a founding Director of
the Stock Exchange and has served three terms as the Chairman of the

former Hong Kong Federation of Stock Exchanges. Dr. Chan has been
appointed by the Group since April 2005 as an Independent Non-executive
Director. He is also an independent non-executive director of Chuang’s China
Investments Limited and Chuang’s Consortium International Limited, both are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan was also an independent non-
executive director of China Resources Enterprise, Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange and subsequently retired in May 2011. He also serves
as the Chairman of Audit Committee and a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

Mr. LI Wei, aged 57, was educated in the PRC,
Germany and Australia. He has over 20 years of
experience in establishing and operating businesses
in Asia, particularly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Li
has previously served as the Managing Director of a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Li has
been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2007. He also
serves as the Chairman of Remuneration committee
and a member of Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. NG Yat Cheung, JP, aged 56, appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in September 2011. Mr. Ng holds an Associate
Degree in Arts in Business Data Processing from
Chabot College in the United States. Mr. Ng holds
offices as director with a number of private
companies which are principally engaged in
technology, property development, finance and
property holding. Mr. Ng is also an independent non-
executive director of China Agri-Products Exchange
Limited and Tao Heung Holdings Limited, the shares of both companies are

listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and was previously an
independent non-executive director of Pan Asia Mining Limited (previously
known as “Intelli-Media Group (Holdings) Limited”), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. He also serves as the
members of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company Secretary (continued)
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The directors (the “Directors”) of VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to present their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the distribution of information technology (“IT”) products
and provision of enterprise systems and IT services.

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer for the year ended 31 December 2011 represented
approximately 10.2% (2010: approximately 7.6%) of the Group’s total
turnover, and the combined total of the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 13.8% (2010: approximately 11.1%) of the Group’s total
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2011.

In addition, the largest supplier for the year ended 31 December 2011
represented approximately 25.7% (2010: approximately 32.2%) of the
Group’s total purchases, and the combined total of the five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 68.8% (2010: approximately 64.0%) of the
Group’s total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2011.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 47.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2011 of HK8 cents per ordinary share (2010: Nil).
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEgRE(E)

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 49 and note 15 to the financial statements
respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s borrowings are set out in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note
13 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to approximately HK$310,300,000 (2010: approximately
HK$267,600,000). In addition, the Company’s share premium account as at
31 December 2011, in the amount of approximately HK$774,200,000 (2010:
approximately HK$774,200,000), may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares in accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman
Islands.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 128.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company repurchased
18,232,000 ordinary shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The repurchased shares were
cancelled. Details of the repurchase of shares by the Company are as follows:
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No. of shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
Month of repurchase repurchased per share (HK$) per share (HK$) price paid (HKS$)
BRES BRI [EEEE ]
BE A5 BEROEE B (B ) B (B x) B (B xT)
May 2011 570,000 1.76 1.74 996,760
—ZET——%1A
October 2011 2,008,000 0.79 0.71 1,513,840
—E——%+H
November 2011 6,648,000 1.26 1.04 7,518,880
—E——F+—A
December 2011 9,006,000 1.10 0.88 8,725,500
—E——%+ZA
18,232,000 18,754,980
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has B EXFTHE B E N AR T EERHE 2

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year
under review.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Directors

The Directors of the Company who held office during the year ended 31
December 2011 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Li Jialin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William

Mr. Chan Hoi Chau

Mr. Mao Xianggian

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe (Re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive
Director on 23 March 2011)
Ms. Liu Li (Appointed on 8 June 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter

Mr. Li Wei

Mr. Ng Yat Cheung (Appointed on 27 September 2011)
Mr. Ni Zhenwei (Deceased on 25 July 2011)

Pursuant to Article 86 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Liu Li
and Mr. Ng Yat Cheung will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. In accordance with
Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Chan Hoi Chau, Mr.
Mao Xianggian and Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter will retire by rotation and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
the Listing Rules and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Jialin has entered into service agreements with the Company for a term
of two years commencing from 9 May 2002 and expiring on 8 May 2004,
renewable automatically for successive years of one year each commencing
from the day immediately after the expiry of the then current term of the
service agreement, unless terminated by not less than 3 months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other. Other executive Directors have
also entered into service agreements with the Company with no specific term
of appointment and shall continue unless terminated by a specific months of
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

Under the service agreements, the annual emoluments of each executive
Director is fixed and the remuneration payable to each of them will be
reviewed by the Board each year.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive and the independent non-executive Directors are
appointed by the Board but subject to re-election or retirement by rotation at
each annual general meeting as appropriate.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has an unexpired service contract
which is not terminable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
obligations.

Directors’ Interests In Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of the companies comprising the Group was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the year ended 31 December 2011 or at any time during the year under
review.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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Biographical Details of Directors and Company
Secretary

Brief biographical details of Directors and company secretary are set out on
pages 23 to 26.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)) (the “SFO”) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Number of
ordinary shares

Approximate
percentage of

Long/Short or underlying issued share capital
Name of Director Position Capacity shares held of the Company
BEZERD EERLAREET
BEEnA E/ER & 5 HEARGEE BRAEZBHNED L
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 56,146,000 4.52%
FEMEE o) EREAA

Long Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.12%

Share options

A BEnEAA 1 B A HE
Long Interest of a controlled 241,950,000 19.49%

corporation (Note 1)

RAE RIEEE RS (Bfat1)
Long Family interest 168,168,000 13.54%

(Note 2)

£ EN 3 £ (Mtit2)
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Number of
ordinary shares

EEEHRE (E)

Approximate
percentage of

Long/Short or underlying issued share capital
Name of Director Position Capacity shares held of the Company
BEEEBERD HAERARE BT
EEHR E/ER & 5 HERODHE BRAEZBHNED L
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 208,000 0.02%
FREFTEE RAE EmBA A
Long Beneficial owner 1,200,000 0.10%
®E EmEA A Share options
1) i A e
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 168,168,000 13.54%
BIF 2+ 2y} EmfEAA
Long Interest of a controlled 241,950,000 19.49%
corporation (Note 1)
rA R EEER (Mtat1)
Long Family interest 56,146,000 4.52%
®kAE EN (Note 3)
(Ktat3)
Long Family interest 1,500,000 0.12%
®A ENL Share options
17 B8 A4
(Note 4)
(Mtita)
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau Long Beneficial owner 1,200,000 0.10%
bR &M 5t A& ®kE EmEA A Share options
1) i A 1
Mr. Mao Xianggian Long Beneficial owner 671,000 0.05%
EmAIEE A EmfEAA
Long Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
BB EnEAA Share options
1 B A 1
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Long Beneficial owner 5,200,000 0.42%
Bl o) % A& ER BEDEEAA Share options
raki-ti g
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter Long Beneficial owner 640,000 0.05%
PRESIEL kA BEREBA
Long Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
B EmfE A Share options
17 B8 A 4
Mr. Li Wei Long Beneficial owner 200,000 0.02%
IR E rEA EniEEA Share options
0 B8 e
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BEEERE (@)
Notes: B
1. 241,950,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire 1. RN A A Z2241,95000088 AR 17 HL&L
issued share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his Limited$5 8 Mz ARz 22 BITR
spouse, Ms. Liu Li. AEFEMEERERBRA R Z LY
EHE -
2. 168,168,000 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of 2. TEMEEZEBINZEIHE AR
Mr. Li Jialin. 7),2168,168,000 B% % 15 ©
3. 56,146,000 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse 3. ARMZLEt 2 BEBFEENRLTEFEAR
of Ms. Liu Li. 7] 2 56,146,000 % i 15 °
4. 1,500,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the 4. ARzt 2 BEBTFEMRLTEREEAR
spouse of Ms. Liu Li. & 21,500,000 17 i A% 1 -
(b)(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of associated (b)() R BB ZE 2 IR 0 R E KR
corporation — ECS Holdings Limited (“ECS”) BER —EAREERA
A (EARABED
Number of Approximate
ordinary shares percentage of
Long/Short or underlying issued share capital
Name of Director Position Capacity shares held of ECS
BELTERY HEABRKE #T
EERE R/E2& 5% HEROCHE BEAzHAB ST
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, William Long Beneficial owner 300,000 0.08%
FTENTEE ER BB A Share options
17 B8 A
Mr. Mao Xianggian Long Beneficial owner 900,000 0.25%
E M A& o) EnEAA Share options
19 B8 A
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Long Beneficial owner 700,000 0.19%
&0k % A& o) EnEAA Share options
19 B8 A

(b)(ii) Interests in shares and underlying shares of associated (b)) 7 #8 B 5% B = IR 7 K B B8 IR

corporation — ECS ICT Berhad (“ECS ICT”) 7 =2 #& = — ECS ICT Berhad ([ ECS
ICTJ)

Number of Approximate

ordinary shares percentage of

Long/Short or underlying issued share capital

Name of Director Position Capacity shares held of ECS ICT

BHREERR {5ECSICTE 81T

EEHR /&R & 5 HEAROGEE BRAEZBHNED L

Mr. Tay Eng Hoe Long Beneficial owner 150,000 0.13%

B 5k AN 5 A rE EmEAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors nor the chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions of which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ and other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 31 December 2011, so far is known to the Directors, the following
persons had an interest and/or a short position in the shares and/or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were
directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class
of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting
of any other members of the Group:

Directors’ Report (continued)
ESgRE @&

BREXHBEBEEN R_F——F+=
A=+t—RH BEXARFAEFTHTE
THRABRARB HAERMBEERCE
EZREFRBEERIBEXVEL) Z 7B
- HEROIEBEFTERBERE
EHRBEMRIEXNVEETRSD A
HMERRBRBIMZEMERENER
(BREREES BB ROIIGWE 1F
KA 2R R HER) IRIEE
5 REE GBI F36216 2 R TEBLAZK
GREELMEBRE EMRAUP ETAR
RESETEFRXGNEETRANS
ARARRBRZ ERNIER

RZZT——F+ZRA=+—B HESFHA
AT AT R AR A 2 By K548 B B 47 o
BERBEZRPE RO EXVEE2R37 &
ZHEXEMARRRBRAERBE 2 BRRS
FRAER/AALCARRAREEFLFRBE
G EIBHREFzECM o BE R HE
BRI EREREAEEMBRIATRA
SEEMEMKERARNZRRAGELERERE

o] 8 Bl AR 7S o B 4 okl B B B TEI (B 5% 3 BA
Mgl 0

Number of
ordinary shares Approximate
Long/Short or underlying percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity shares held shareholding
BEEBERZ
RRERW /&R 54 HEROHEE BOREES L
Mr. Li Jialin Long Beneficial owner 56,146,000 4.52%
FEMEE RE BEmBEAA
Long Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.12%
Share options
®A BEmBEAA i diie
Long Interest of a controlled 241,950,000 19.49%
corporation (Note 1)
RE RynEERES (Mtat1)
Long Family interest 168,168,000 13.54%
(Note 2)
RE EN 33 (Mit2)

BAZRERIA —T——FFRH
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Number of
ordinary shares

Approximate

Long/Short or underlying percentage of
Name of shareholder Position Capacity shares held shareholding
BFEEZBERY
RRER R/ER g7 HERODEE BOBREES L
Ms. Liu Li Long Beneficial owner 168,168,000 13.54%
BIF 2+ RAE BmEAA
Long Interest of a controlled 241,950,000 19.49%
corporation (Note 1)
RAE RyPnEERES (Btat1)
Long Family interest 56,146,000 4.52%
(Note 3)
RE Kt (Hf#E3)
Long Family interest 1,500,000 0.12%
Share options
KA eI i die
(Note 4)
(Htzt4)
L & L Limited Long Beneficial owner 241,950,000 19.49%
(Note 5)
RE BEnERAA (Mtits)
Eternal Asia (HK) Limited Long Beneficial owner 159,159,999 12.82%
(Note 6)
RE BEnERAA (Mtite)
YT a At rE AR Long Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 12.82%
BRAT] corporation (Note 7)
RE R EE RS (Ktat7)
FYNTEE A SRS AR AR Long Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 12.82%
corporation (Note 8)
RE R EE RS (Mtit8)
Zhou Guohui Long Interest of a controlled 159,159,999 12.82%
corporation (Note 8)
B E RE R EE RS (Mtit8)
Fidelity Long Investment manager 100,686,000 8.11%
k& REKE
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Notes:

1. 241,950,000 shares of the Company are held by L & L Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and his spouse, Ms. Liu Li

2. 168,168,000 shares of the Company are held by Ms. Liu Li, the spouse of Mr. Li
Jialin.

3. 56,146,000 shares of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of Ms.
Liu Li.

4. 1,500,000 share options of the Company are held by Mr. Li Jialin, the spouse of
Ms. Liu Li.

5. The entire issued share capital of L & L Limited is equally held by Mr. Li Jialin and
his spouse, Ms. Liu Li.

6. The entire issued share capital of Eternal Asia (HK) Limited are held by ;&3I4
DB EEROERAR.

7. 6.88% and 49.52% of the shares of 7T 15 Iz i {H fE 52’ 15 B R 2 A are held
by FIIMEERBEREBRAR and RITWHEHBEIERERA A
respectively. 49.1% of the shares of F#YI|HEE & BEERI AR AR are held by
FY T EE S BUSIER B R AR

8. 92.5% of the shares of JEIIITHEEA EGIZA AR A=) are held by Mr. Zhou
Guohui.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, so far is known to the
Directors, there was no person had an interest and/or a short position in the
shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provision
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and/or required to be entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% of more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meeting of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEgRE(E)

Share Options

(@) Share option scheme of the Company

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 17
April 2002 for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Further details of
the Scheme are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

During the year under review, 15,300,000 share options have been
granted and no share options have been exercised or cancelled. Details
of the share options movement under the Scheme are as follows:

B

@ A E)ERESTE

KAREZZE_FOA++HEMNT
EREI(ZAE]) RmeaEEN2
HERHMEENADGE URIARSE
RAEBELENER - ZrTENE—F
HBEHRTBHERME14R -

EEEBEFERN: 2% 11530000075
B B ECMBREDETFERGE
HoRBEZAERENERENEF

BT
As at Granted Lapsed As at Exercise
Name or category 1 January during during 31 December price per
of participant Date of offer 2011 the year the year 2011 share (HK$)  Exercise period
R=E——§ R=ZB-—-5 BRIKE
SHEEXEDRERN BTFEH —-A—-B #RARY FAXY +T=A=+-H (Br) 1TE&ESD
Director
i)
Mr. Li Jialin 23/03/2011 — 1,500,000 — 1,500,000 2434  23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
FEMEE
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam, ~ 23/03/2011 — 1,200,000 — 1,200,000 2.434  23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
William
TERT%E
Mr. Chan Hoi Chau ~ 23/03/2011 — 1,200,000 — 1,200,000 2.434  23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
SN
Mr. Mao Xianggian ~ 23/03/2011 - 200,000 - 200,000 2.434  23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
EMATEE
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 20/02/2009 5,000,000 - — 5,000,000 0.54  20/02/2009 — 19/02/2019
ks £
23/03/2011 - 200,000 - 200,000 2.434  23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
Dr. Chan Po Fun Peter 23/03/2011 — 200,000 — 200,000 2434 23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
REAEL
Mr. Li Wei 23/03/2011 - 200,000 - 200,000 2.434  23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
FREEE
Mr. Ni Zhenwei 23/03/2011 — 200,000  (200,000) — 2434 23/03/2013 — 22/03/2021
RRERE
Sub-total /N5t 5,000,000 4,900,000  (200,000) 9,700,000
Employees 17/02/2011 — 10,400,000 — 10,400,000 2.672  17/02/2013 - 16/02/2021
B8
Total 485t 5,000,000 15,300,000  (200,000) 20,100,000
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(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS Holdings

Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, adopted a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (the “Scheme 1I”) on 13 December 2000
whereby the directors of ECS are authorized, at their discretion, to
invite ECS’s employees and directors, including non-executive directors
of ECS and its subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe for shares

of ECS.

During the year under review, no share options have been exercised or
cancelled. Details of the share options movement under the Scheme I

are as follows:

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @

b) MEBRAABRETS —EARN

MEBERAE (ERRED

ARANMBRAREAMBRR _-_TEE
FT-A+T=RAKMH—EBERES —
EARM BRSNS - &t
EANMKEZTERERNBREFEANRK
MEENER(EREEANRRENE
RAMFATER)EARBERNR
P A7) 69 18 A HEE

EOEFEARN BIECAUBRESET
e - RBTENRH B RENE
BEBEOT

Granted Lapsed As at
Name or category As at during during 31 December Exercise price
of participant Date of offer 1 January 2011 the year the year 2011 pershare (S$) Exercise period
SHERED R=B——-F% R=ZB-——-% BROIKE
Bl BRTBEH —A-B #RERE FALXX +ZA=tHE  Gimkx) TEH
Director
=
Mr. Tay Eng Hoe 156/10/2010 700,000 - - 700,000 0.55 5 years from date of grant
oAk E B A MR 5F
Mr. Mao Xianggian 15/10/2010 900,000 — — 900,000 0.55 10 years from date of grant
EMFIEE BT B EE 105
Mr. Ong Wei Hiam,  15/10/2010 300,000 - - 300,000 0.55 5 years from date of grant
William
FEEE SRkl ek s
Sub-total /N5t 1,900,000 — — 1,900,000
Employees 15/10/2010 11,870,000 — (920,000 10,950,000 0.55  5t0 10 years from date of
grant
8 AR AR 104
Total 45t 13,770,000 —  (920,000) 12,850,000

(c) Share option of a subsidiary — ECS Indo Pte Ltd (“ECS

Indo”)

On 16 October 2009, the Company’s subsidiary, ECS Indo granted
120,000 share options to four senior employees of a subsidiary of ECS

(c) Bt/ 2~ B B8 IR A& 5T E—ECS Indo

Pte Ltd ([ ECS Indo_])

RZZEZENF+A+7H  X2FHMH
B A alECS Indo [AECS Indo— = [t B A

Indo. Al O H S AR E B IR 120,000 85 B
-
Granted Lapsed As at
Name or category As at during during 31 December Exercise price
of participant Date of offer 1 January 2011 the year the year 2011 pershare (US$)  Exercise period
R=-B——-F R=ZB--F% BRIEE
SHEEREHEN BFAY —B—-B #FREYE FREA¥ +=ZB=+-H (Ex) TS
Employees 16/10/2009 113,392 — - 113,392 1.8156  16/10/2009 — 16/10/2012

B8
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEEgRE(E)

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of the companies comprising the group, a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the Directors, their spouses or their children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

The Directors consider that they have no interests in any competing business.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Connected Transactions

Connected transactions have been disclosed in Note 30 of the financial
statements.

The above transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing
Rules. The Directors are of the opinion that the above transactions were
entered into on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis and
the terms of the above transactions are fair and reasonable so far as the
shareholders of the Company are concerned and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company taken as a whole.

The above connected transactions constituted exempted connected
transactions under the Listing Rules as each of the percentage ratios is less
than 0.1% as defined under the Listing Rules when the agreements were
entered into.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Emoluments

A summary of the Directors and senior management’s emoluments is set out
in note 27 to the financial statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Company’s audited results for the year ended 31 December 2011 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee who was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

Auditors

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been audited by KPMG who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Li Jialin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012

Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE @

AEEREZRREM

ENAD AT RBES 2 AR LB EE A
M ARFERBRE-E——F+-A=+
—BLEFERERRHZARBERE -

F>
M
I}

VAN
/H

XEAABEINAFRICRERRE ] —

o

= B

BEZEES

ARARE-F——F+-A=t+—BLF
FrEEREACHERZEREN B
ZEERARSEMZREUFOEA Z B
AR - LB IO RE -

B BL B

AEBBE-_T——F+t-_A=+—HLF
EZHBHBRERCHESHRESAMELME
T RN ARBEERREFAE LRE
W& ERETIAELE -

RREFZ
TIERITHAE
FEM

B —E——HF=ZA-+_-H

BHAERERLIE —T— 55§



Independent Auditor’s Report

B M A% AR

lcnac

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
VST HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VST Holdings
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 44 to 127, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

e VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011

BEARRARQBDIMRROE L&
®E
(RASFEEIME LA BRI )

RMEBRFI RN FEMS 127 EREERAER
AREARDRANBAR (GHE BEE])
MEAMBRE LEAMBRREEN -
T——F+-A=t+—BNBARATEE
ARREBERALFENGAARNE &
AREARE GARNEHBERGAR
SRERE URIEGHBRAMERAM
RIS o

EERGRAMBHRRARE
ZE1E

BERRESARERBEETEEMASRM
B &8 WIS & R R IR E BECR B G
MEEREREEAMBERE - (FHEEM
AENORBR UEREERRIRETIEFER
RERFRERMERBERBRBANEA R
BHRELENAERIES

BT 2 B E

BN BEERBREBERMNEZEZSEAN
BHRERBR -AREEMEBRRAEL
Bl 2 A REREELMBE N KM TS5
ARENATAEMEMALE EHAEE
mEE-

BMERBEEEAMASGRMANETEE
BRAETEZ RFEUBRAMETER
HE - WHRERATEZ  AAERE M FLR
BHMBHRREL N FEEMERERRAL -



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
B ZEE R E (F)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2012
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SEEERER

As at 31 December 2011 A= ——F+ A =+—H

2011 2010
—E—-—F —E-ZEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7E FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BENLEKE 5 127,351 115,895
Goodwill Ha 6 327,689 330,370
Interest in associates PR & N B Y BE 2 9 277,047 252,005
Deferred expenses EER X 10 19,854 =
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 17 49,622 42,008
801,563 740,278
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk HAb W R IE 10 4,043,098 4,164,365
Inventories FE 11 2,127,320 1,985,616
Cash and cash equivalents HeLBEEEEY 12 1,573,134 1,015,251
7,743,552 7,165,232
Total assets HMEE 8,545,115 7,905,510
EQUITY e
Share capital % 7 13 124,066 125,889
Reserves s 2,463,461 2,007,971
2,587,527 2,133,860
Non-controlling interests FERER 209,702 192,472
Total equity MR 2,797,229 2,326,332
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
meEESER(E)
As at 31 December 2011 R=F——F+=-A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7E FET T
LIABILITIES &&
Non-current liabilities kARBEE
Deferred income IR IE W A 16 23,549 3,454
Borrowings =8y 18 697,427 650,104
Deferred tax liabilities BT IEE & 17 27,003 24,086
747,979 677,644
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B REAMEMNFKIE 16 3,731,628 3,716,513
Borrowings =8y 18 1,173,547 1,123,296
Taxation payable AN 94,732 61,725
4,999,907 4,901,534
Total liabilities BmeF 5,747,886 5,579,178
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAH 8,545,115 7,905,510
Net current assets REEERE 2,743,645 2,263,698
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 3,545,208 3,003,976
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March #E@RN_T—_—F=A_+_HBH#ERZET

2012.

Li Jialin

ZEM BBk N
Director Director
EE BE

Tay Eng Hoe

S

The notes on pages 52 to 127 are an integral part of these financial 58
/]}

statements.
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Balance Sheet

BEERER

As at 31 December 2011 A= ——F+ A =+—H

2011 2010
—E—-—F —E-ZEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B & FHExT FAT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME BELEKE 932 1,332

Investments in subsidiaries NI B AR ZEEA 7 1,393,898 1,393,898

1,394,830 1,395,230

Current assets REEE

Prepayments B FRIE 10 345 340

Cash and cash equivalents HeRREZEEY 12 2,121 847

2,466 1,187

Total assets HmEE 1,397,296 1,396,417
EQUITY Ex

Share capital % 7 13 124,066 125,889

Reserves E s 16 1,099,550 1,046,457
Total equity R 1,223,616 1,172,346
LIABILITIES &&
Current liabilities REBAE

Amount due to a subsidiary AN ENGIE S 8 173,594 91,888

Other payables and accruals H b FE AT 7008 N FE 5T R IE 16 86 183

Borrowings BE 18 — 132,000
Total liabilities Bme s 173,680 224,071
Total equity and liabilities EzREEAR 1,397,296 1,396,417
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (171,214) (222,884)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBER 1,223,616 1,172,346
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March FEeRN_T——F=-A -+ _AHEREET

2012.

Li Jialin Tay Eng Hoe
ZEM BBk 0
Director Director

== EF

The notes on pages 52 to 127 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Income Statement

AN
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &£ =T ——F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FET FAT
Turnover mEE 19 32,617,058 26,212,600
Cost of sales §H & B AR (31,103,615) (25,060,065)
Gross profit EF 1,513,443 1,152,535
Other gains, net H g AJF 58 20 32,237 74,530
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (574,949) (449,416)
Administrative expenses THEX (270,088) (236,653)
Operating profit £ 21 700,643 540,996
Finance costs R E=g 22 (103,654) (60,552)
596,989 480,444
Share of associates’ profits DA EEE D R R 37,592 29,919
Profit before taxation B %54 BT & A 634,581 510,363
Taxation 7 I8 23 (145,787) (102,305)
Profit for the year F & F 488,794 408,058
Attributable to: BN ARG
Equity shareholders of the Company ARARIERFAEA 462,516 370,280
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R S 26,278 37,778
488,794 408,058
Earnings per share (HK cents per share) & & A (Z 8B 26
— Basic — HEAR 36.80 cents il 29.41 cents 1Ll
— Diluted — 58 36.70 cents i 29.32 cents 1llI
Dividend attributable to equity shareholders FERERESARE 25
Final dividend proposed Ik R HA AR B 100,000 =

The notes on pages 52 to 127 are an integral part of these financial 5 52ZF 127 B 7 Mf 3% & gk & Bt % 3| % ~ — &P
b2

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REEHEHEBEDRR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZE = ——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2011 2010

—E——F —E-ZEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Profit for the year F N i 488,794 408,058
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax: FRAHMEEBRA R

Exchange differences bE 5 =58 357 132,977

Total comprehensive income for the year FANEHEWALLTE 489,151 541,035

Attributable to: BTN AL R

Equity shareholders of the Company KATREREZEAR A 463,502 488,732

Non-controlling interests JEERER 25,649 52,303

Total comprehensive income for the year FAEHEBALE 489,151 541,035

The notes on pages 52 to 127 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

eI

For the year ended 31 December 2011 HZE—Z——F+ - A=+—HILFE

n‘/-ﬁ

Equity
attributable
to the
Capital Company’s Non-
Share Share redemption Capital General Translation Other  Retained equity controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings shareholders interests equity
EEL
- BHAEE FER
Bax BROEE WMEFEE BEXEF —-RER EXGRFE H4RE KREERA [ 53 33 BER
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TERT FTERT TER TER TERT TERT TERT TERT TER TER TER
Note (i) Note (i) ~ Note (i)  Note (iv) Note (v  Note (vi)
it (i) MEEG)  MEEEGH)  MEEGY) MRy HE)
Balance at 1 January 2010 RZT—ZF
—RA—BZ#&# 125,889 772,512 2,643 3,808 16,700 31,741 (183,871) 873,120 1,642,642 254,647 1,897,189
Profit for the year F R — — - - - - - 370,280 370,280 37,778 408,058
Other comprehensive income Hi2mEKRA = - - - - 118,452 - - 118,452 14,525 132,977
Total comprehensive income FREEBA
for the year Fek] = = = = = 118,452 = 370,280 488,732 52,303 541,035
Derecognition of financial liability R TE R 5 8 & - - - - - - 2,500 - 2,500 - 2,500
Dilution and partial disposal of HE—FRERQR
a subsidiary to an associate BHEEEK A
BERA - - = - = = = = — (108,018  (108,018)
Dividends paid to [A] FE 4% AR #E 25 % A+
non-controlling interests 2B - - - - - - - - - (6,460) (6,460)
Transfer of reserves R - - - - 9,317 - - (9,317) - - -
Equity-settled share-based AR 214 2
payment 2% 4 ROR - - - 86 - - - - 86 - 86
Balance at 31 December 2010 RZZ—ZTF+=A
=t-—Hz#&& 125,889 772,512 2,643 3,894 26,017 150,193  (181,371) 1,234,083 2,133,860 192,472 2,326,332
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-_T——%F
—A—Bz&# 125,889 772,512 2,643 3,894 26,017 150,193  (181,371) 1,234,083 2,133,860 192,472 2,326,332
Profit for the year F AN - - - - - - - 462,516 462,516 26,278 488,794
Other comprehensive income Hi2mKRA - - - - - 986 - - 986 (629) 357
Total comprehensive income FREEBA
for the year Fek) - - - - - 986 - 462,516 463,502 25,649 489,151
Dividends paid to ] FE 128 AR 4 25 32 A+
non-controlling interests 2B - - - - - - - - - (8,419) (8,419)
Transfer of reserves R - - - - 10,265 - - (10,265) -
Equity-settled share-based AR 24 2
payment T 2% 48 KR - - - 8,920 - - - - 8,920 - 8,920
Repurchase of own shares % 51 A8 & AR 15
— Par value paid —BEfNEE (1,823) - - - - - - - (1,823) - (1,823)
— Premium paid —BRE - - - - - - - (16,932) (16,932) - (16,932)
— Transfer between reserves — R - - 1,823 - - - - (1,829) -
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=—ZT——F+=A
=+—Bz#&H 124,066 772,512 4,466 12,814 36,282 151,179 (181,371) 1,667,579 2,587,527 209,702 2,797,229
Representing: K :
Share capital i@ 124,066
Reserves & 2,363,461
Proposed dividend R AR B 100,000
2,587,527

pages 52 to 127 are an integral part of these financial $52ZE 1278 2 @ik A B RE 2 — 26

statements. AN
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
REEREBHREK (B
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =T —— &+ -_A=+—HBILtFE

0] The share premium account of the Group includes: (a) the difference between
the nominal values of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired and that of
the Company issued in exchange pursuant to the Group reorganisation in April
2002; (b) the capitalisation issue in April 2002; and (c) the premium arising from
the new issue of shares, net of share issuance costs.

In accordance with the Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

(ii) The capital redemption reserve comprises the par value of the cancelled shares
of the Company transferred from retained earnings pursuant to Companies Law
(revised) of the Cayman Islands.

(iii) The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the Company and the Group
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2.16(d).

(iv) According to the current People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) Company Law, the
PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10% of their profits after
taxation to statutory surplus reserve until the surplus reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. For the purpose of calculating the amount to be
transferred to the reserve, the profit after taxation is the amount determined
under PRC accounting standards. The amount of transfer to this reserve has to
be made before profit distribution to shareholders. In accordance with the
relevant regulations, this reserve may be used to make up any losses incurred or
to increase the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries.

(V) The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note 2.3(c).

(Vi) Other reserve comprises the difference between consideration paid and the

relevant share of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary for the
transactions with holders of non-controlling interests of subsidiaries (Note 2.2(a)).
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

n‘/-_F/\IEI 37 /J|LE$E7:—§

For the year ended 31 December 2011 &£ =T ——F+ A=+ —HIEFE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REXB RERE
Net cash generated from operations REEBREAZRES TR 28 687,003 258,494
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BERNEANER (27,360) (19,275)
Overseas tax paid B8N IE (90,433) (67,382)
Net cash generated from operating activities KEEBRAEZIRE T 569,210 171,837
Cash flows from investing activities REZHZ2HERE
Interest received 2 W F E 11,838 7,678
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BMENEZE (31,042) (19,101)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWME WMEKRERH
and equipment 53k 1A 514 425
Proceeds from disposal of HEMEEEMBSEE
available-for-sale financial assets FT 8 58 - 707
Proceeds from dilution and partial disposal 0 & — M B A | 3f 15
of a subsidiary to an associate WK AR E QT
Fr 1S %H - (31,877)
Dividends received from an associate L B Bk 2 A R IR B 4,995 4,817
Acquisition of additional interest in W B B = X |
an associate BB HIMEE 2 - (3,604)
Net cash used in investing activities KEESFA RS FE (13,695) (40,959)
Cash flows from financing activities MEFHCHEERE
Payment for repurchase of shares i 1B A% ) 1~ 3K (18,755) —
New bank borrowings LR ITEE 8,466,650 6,683,898
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (8,336,690) (6,197,805)
Payment to non-controlling interests eI AR i 2 (8,419) (6,460)
Interest paid 252 (103,654) (60,552)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA),/FTE
financing activities e FE (868) 419,081
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRBEESEYENFE 554,647 549,963
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BZR&ER
BEe&EEY 1,015,251 450,840
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRS & 3,236 14 A4S
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+—_A=+—H8Z2
HERIREEEBY 12 1,573,134 1,015,251

The notes on pages 52 to 127 are an integral part of these financial 5552ZF 127 B 2 MY &t i B AN B 75 5 & 2 — =B
e

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2= ——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

1. General Information

VST Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the distribution of information
technology (“IT”) products, provider of enterprise systems and IT
services.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. Its principal place of business is at Unit 3312, 33th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These financial statements are presented in thousands of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$’'000), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March
2012.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to the current and prior years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEBFHEME w0

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (ontinued) 21 mEEE )

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except that other financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are stated at their fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these,
the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial
statements:

° HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

° Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continueq)

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party.
As a result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of
related parties and concluded that the revised definition does not
have any material impact on the Group’s related party disclosures
in the current and previous years. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also
introduces modified disclosure requirements for government-
related entities. This does not impact the Group because the
Group is not a government-related entity.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces a
number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group’s financial instruments in note 3 have been conformed to
the amended disclosure requirements. These amendments do
not have any material impact on the classification, recognition
and measurements of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements in the current and previous years.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Consolidation

(@  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into
account.

e VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation continuea)

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with note 2.8 depending on the nature of the
liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation continuea)

@

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 2.8) or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in associates (see note 2.2(b)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.7), unless the investment is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

e VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt 5 (&)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation continuea)

(b)

Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change
in the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 2.7).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation continuea)

(b)

Associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when significant influence is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2.8) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate.

2.3 Foreign currency translation

@

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale
investment reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation continueq)

©)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operation and
other currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss
on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FERBFHEMEw

(continued)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 24 ¥ -HWENZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the carrying values of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
values, if any, on a straight line basis over the shorter of the
unexpired period of lease and the anticipated remaining useful
lives of the assets. The annual rates of depreciation which have
been adopted are summarised as follows:

Leasehold improvements
HEBFEE
Buildings held for own use carried at cost

REARFNEZ FHER BT
Furniture and fixtures
REREE

Office equipment
AR

Computers

S

Motor vehicles

e

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (see note 2.7).
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continueq)

Gains or losses on retirement or disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amounts. These are included in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Assets under construction

Assets under construction represent property, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see
note 2.7). Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings,
the costs of plant and machinery and interest charges arising
from borrowings used to finance these assets during the period
of construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on assets under construction until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and are available for
the intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to items of property, plant and
equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in note 2.4 above.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.6

2.7

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2.7).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and
associate and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation, and are tested at
least annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating
unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for
the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The Company allocates goodwill to groups of
cash-generating units in the same geographical location with
similar principal activities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
jﬁ%*ﬁ% MT? (lnﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEBFHEMEw
(continued)
2.7 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and 27 RRHE A 7] 5‘%%’358’]

associate and non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units)
on a pro rata basis.

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of an
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial period. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect
of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is
the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FERBFHEMEw

(continued)

2.8 Financial instruments 28 @I A

Financial assets

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date. These
are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are
classified as “trade and other receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the balance sheet (see notes 2.10 and 2.11).

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets
is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted
for separately if the economic characteristics and risks of the host
contract and the embedded derivates are not closely related,
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and the
combined instrument is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Financial instruments (continueq)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities (continued)
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value; attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative
financial instruments are measured at fair value. When a
derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not
designated in a qualifying hedge-relationship, all changes in its
fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Interest expense is recognised on
an effective interest basis.

Inventories

Inventories comprise IT products for distribution and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined using weighted average cost formula. The
cost of finished goods comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. It excludes borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FERBFHEMEw

(continued)

2.9 Inventories (continueaq)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts. Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
are recognised when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the effective interest rate where the effect of
discounting is material.

Impairment losses for trade receivables within trade and other
receivables whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote are recorded using an allowance account. Where the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
jﬁ%*ﬁ% MT? (lnﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEBFHEMEw

(continued)
2.11 Cash and cash equivalents 2NBERBESZEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, RekBReZEEWRERITETF

demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Repurchase of share

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly
attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity.
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2.13Trade and other payables Q1I3BEZ R HEMENRIE

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FERBFHEMEw

(continued)

2.15Income tax 2.15 FT 18 %t

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements. However, the deferred tax is not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets
are realised or the deferred tax liabilities are settled. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FEBFHEMEw

(continued)

2.15Income tax (continued) 215 FT 8%t (&)

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

2.16 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

@

Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution plans, the assets
of which are held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The retirement plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and by the relevant group companies. For
employees in the PRC, the Group participates in defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant
local government in the PRC.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =T ——F+=-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.16 Employee benefits (continuea)

©)

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses taking into account the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders. The Group recognises a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a
past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted.

Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it
is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained earnings).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #E2=—Z——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. TESTHHEME

(continued)

2.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities QITRE R ARERE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.18 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(@)  Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (4&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =T ——F+=-_A=+—HBILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. FERBFHEMEw

(continued)

2.18 Leases (continued) 218 HHE @)

(b)  Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group
has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair
value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the lease payments
is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life
of the asset and the lease term. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in note 2.7.

2.19 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #E2=—Z——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods
Sale of goods is recognised when products have been
delivered to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the products
and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Service fees
Fees from service maintenance contracts are recognised
over the period of the contract.

(i) Project revenue
Revenue on projects is recognised in the income statement
based on the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for the contract.

(iv)  Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(v)  Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.21 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the directors (for interim
dividends) or approved by the shareholders (for final dividends).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in various countries and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to Chinese Renminbi
(“BRMB?”), the United States Dollar (‘US$”), Singapore Dollar
(“S$”) and Thai Baht (“THB”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

To manage the foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
the Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to
reduce foreign exchange risk. As at 31 December 2011,
the Group had outstanding foreign currency forward
contracts with a notional amount of approximately
HK$627,620,000 (2010: approximately HK$912,129,000).

A 5% strengthening of HK$ against financial assets and
liabilities denominated in the following currencies other
than the functional currencies of the Group’s entities at
31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 would have
increased/(decreased) the post-tax profit of the Group by
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31 December 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 &

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

@

MEEEERAFE

(&)

31 B EKREZE®)

Foreign exchange risk (continued) (@ SNERBR(#)

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—2-—-F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHE T FAT
RMB AR 46,812 26,973
US$ ETT (34,895) (5,269)
S$ oo 7,821 10,042
THB £ 10,769 8,514
Indonesian Rupiah (“RP”) EEE(HERED (215) 294
Philippine Pesos (“PHP”) FREBR(EZR] - 2,033
A 5% weakening of HK$ against the above currencies BILH F it E R B 5% &

would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates and the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the cash and cash equivalents, details
of which have been disclosed in note 12. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its borrowings, details of which have been disclosed in
note 18. Borrowings carried at floating rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

At 31 December 2011,
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year would have been HK$15,653,000 (2010:
HK$14,786,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate bank borrowings.

if the interest rates on bank
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continuea)

©)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated
balance sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets. The
exposures to these credit risks are closely monitored
on an ongoing basis by established credit policies and
procedures.

Cash and cash equivalents are mainly deposited in various
financial institutions, which management believes are of
high quality. Management does not expect any loss from
non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic credit evaluations
of its customers. The Group’s historical experience in
collection of trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances. The Group has no significant concentrations
of credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B % ¥R 2R Bt 5 (&)
E-T——F+-A=+—HUIFE

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEBEREBEERKAFYE
(continued) (#&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBEREE®
(d)  Liquidity risk 0 RBMERER
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining BEZRBAMRKREERE
sufficient cash and the availability of funding from an BRHARCREREBREHN
adequate amount of credit facilities. The Group’s treasury BHEZEEREREFERE
department maintains flexibility in funding by keeping credit o AKEEMERERBUER
lines available. FEEBEEN R  L#F
Be 2 BIEM -
Management monitors roling forecasts of the Group’s EREEREHRASEEER
liquidity reserve, comprises of undrawn facility and cash AEERBFEEG(BEARER
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. HENERRERBASEFED)
The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s REBTER - TRAAE
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based ARG BEBEEREE
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the HESAZHB AT M
contractual maturity date. DEEEBE AR ST -
Between  Between
Less than 1and 2 and After
Total 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
it £ -5Z@E MEZEE  BARE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FRT FRT FRT TR TR
Group x5
At 31 December 2011 —E-—-f+-A=t+-H
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,922,182 1,205571 667,965 31,318 17,328
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEE 1,758 999 759 = =
Trade and other payables B REMERNHE 3,731,628 3,731,628 - - -
At 31 December 2010 —Z2-E¥+-H=1+-H
Bank borrowings BITEHE 1,841,089 1,166,499 3,597 650,032 20,911
Finance lease liabilities HERERE 2,636 1,012 1,624 - -
Trade and other payables Z5 R EMENZE 3,716,513 3,716,513 — — —
Company b/
At 31 December 2011 —2——%+=-H=1+-H
Other payables and accruals  H it f& {1 78 & fE 5t 28 86 86 - = =
At 31 December 2010 —E-Z5+-A=+-H
Bank borrowings RITER 134,784 134,784 - — -
Other payables and accruals 1 1 38 & & 58 183 183 - - -
BHERERAT T FF#H



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MBREE?

(continued) (&)

AFE

3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXEmE?

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the net debt/equity
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Equity is calculated as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2011:

AEEEEEANBNRERAN
SEEFAERSBRRRIE KK ®
HipF s 0B E &N RERESR
BB R IR PAOBUE B AR A o

REFIABEARRE  AEEK
ERBRMNBRAOKE B TRR
MEADR BHITHFROIXHESR
ENSRAREEE-

AEBMBFAE L EXERE
Ko ZH RIRBEBBRFEGABE
B E - BERFRREABE(ER
HRAEEERBERATHRE NI
MBEE)RReRRASEEY

cRRREREERBERM R

st
= o
el

TROMAKEER_FT——F+
“A=+—HHERERE:

2011 2010

—z——% —z-=zf

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHEIT

Total borrowings (Note 18) BE®EE(MT18) 1,870,974 1,773,400
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoBRERREZEEY

(Note 12) (Ktat12) (1,573,134) (1,015,251)

Net debt BIRFER 297,840 758,149

Total equity AR 2,797,229 2,326,332

Net debt/equity ratio FRE X 0.11 0.33
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MEEEERAFE

(&)

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3.

(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMLE

The fair values of receivables, bank balances and other current
assets, payables and accruals, current borrowings and provisions
are assumed to approximate their carrying amounts due to the
short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is
determined by using the forward exchange rates at the balance
sheet date and comparing to the contractual rates. The fair value
of borrowings is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial institutions.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010.

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value of financial
instruments measured at fair value at the balance sheet date
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised in its entirety based
on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial
instruments

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active
markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

(continued)

3. Financial Risk Management and Fair Values 3. MEBREBEERKAFEE
(&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AFEEMF @)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued) NAFEIEZE/MT E#E)
. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation e F-—EXR(EERER): KAG
techniques in which any significant input is not based on BERM (R EREASETD
observable market date I 3E A ER R T35 BUR B A) 5T
EQFE
Group
rEHE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—EBRX HEZBR H=ZBR &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET FET FET
At 31 December 2011 R-ZT——F
+—A=+—8”
Liabilities =K
Forward foreign exchange iR BN & 4
contracts = 17,734 - 17,734
At 31 December 2010 R-ZZE—ZF
—A=+—H
Liabilities =R
Forward foreign exchange iR BN & 4D
contracts = 39,362 = 39,362

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(@)

Estimated write-down of inventories to net

realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-
downs of inventories are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be realised.

The identification of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(continued)

(b)

Estimated provision for impairment of trade
receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of trade receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. Provisions are applied to trade receivables where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible.

The identification of impairment of trade receivables requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.7. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates (see note 6).

In assessing the value-in-use of the goodwill, management
considers changes in economic conditions and makes
assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other
factors. Estimates of future cash flows are highly subjective
and judgements are based on the Group’s experience and
knowledge of operations. These estimates can be significantly
impacted by many factors including changes in business and
economic conditions, operating costs, inflation and competition.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

5. Property, Plant and Equipment 5. ¥ BEREE

Group RE
Building held
Leasehold forownuse  Furniture and Office Assets under
improvements  carried at cost fixtures equipment Computers  Motor vehicles construction Total
HE RRASIE BREAR BAE
WEEE NiEEaRER RE R L] RE HREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign TR Tign Ti#gn TR Tign Tign Tign
At 1 January 2010 —Z-Z5-f-H
Cost RAE 8,948 67,390 8972 10918 32,665 9,057 5,459 143,409
Accumulated depreciation it E (4,378) (1,183) (2,450) (5,849) (9,744) (3.351) = (26,955)
Net book amount REFE 4,570 66,207 6,522 5,069 22,921 5,706 5,459 116,454
Year ended 31 December 2010 ~ HE-T—TF
+ZRA=+-HLFE
Opening net book amount HREFE 4,570 66,207 6,522 5,069 22,921 5,706 5,459 116,454
Additions RE 4,045 - 2,213 2,842 5,901 2,729 3,326 21,056
Transfer 22 - - 2,600 - 262 - (2,852) -
Disposals & 9 - (43) (26) (358) (811) - (747)
Dilution and partial disposal of & — R 2 R 35 -

a subsidiary to an associate BRENABERR - (2,420) (2,600) (2,694) (368) = (8,082)
Depreciation 78 2,011) (1,827) (1,769) (1,246) (7,446) (1,676) = (15,475)
Exchange difference ERER 272 21 205 158 1,309 89 635 2,689
Closing net book amount HAEEFE 6,867 64,901 7,308 4,197 19,885 6,169 6,568 115,896

At 31 December 2010 and K==
1 January 2011 +=-A=+-A
k=Z——%—-A-H
Cost HARE 12,726 67,701 9,278 9,490 27,811 8,309 6,568 141,883
Accumulated depreciation RitHE (65,859) (2,800) (1,970) (5,293) (7,926) (2,140) - (25,988)
Net book amount REFE 6,867 64,901 7,308 4197 19,885 6,169 6,568 115,895
Year ended 31 December 2011~ HE=-F——4
+ZRA=+-BILFE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 6,867 64,901 7,308 4197 19,885 6,169 6,568 115,895
Additions AE 4,308 3,169 3,646 2,326 8,753 768 8,072 31,042
Transfer HE 3,076 - 2,080 588 5,874 - (11,618) -
Disposals HE (440) - 31) (64) (873) (297) - (1,705)
Depreciation ik (2,569) (1,401) (1,867) (1,463) (7,527) (1,692) = (16,519)
Exchange difference EXZER (135) (i) (335) (134) (500) (19) (235) (1,362)
Closing net book amount HAEEFE 11,107 66,665 10,801 5,450 25,612 4,929 2,787 127,351
At 31 December 2011 R=F——4
+-A=+-A
Cost RAE 17,670 70,822 13,596 11,734 34,324 8,564 2,787 159,397
Accumulated depreciation 2iHhE (6,463) (4,157) (2,795) (6,284) 8,712) (3,635) = (32,046)
Net book amount BHEE 11,107 66,665 10,801 5,450 25,612 4,929 2,787 127,351
The net book value of property, plant and equipment under finance MERMEE TN ZVE BELEENR=
leases as at 31 December 2011 was HK$2,165,000 (2010: T——F+_A=+—HHNEEFESE
HK$3,353,000). 2,165,000/ 7T (= & — T £ : 3,353,000
BIT) °

e VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

. Y 173 ﬁ_
5. Property, Plant and Equipment continueq 5. ME¥E - -BMERRZEw
Company PN
Motor vehicles
RE
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ETF—-H—H
Cost XA E 1,998
Accumulated depreciation e i (266)
Net book amount BREDFE 1,732
Year ended 31 December 2010 BEZZ—ZF+-A=1+—HLFE
Opening net book amount H ) AR DR (E 1,732
Depreciation e (400)
Closing net book amount HREREDF(E 1,332
At 31 December 2010 and at 1 January 2011 RZE—ZTF+-_A=+—8K
—T——%—H—H
Cost X A {E 1,998
Accumulated depreciation E i (666)
Net book amount BREDFE 1,332
Year ended 31 December 2011 HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount H ¥R EDF (B 1,332
Depreciation e (400)
Closing net book amount HR AR EDF (B 932
At 31 December 2011 R=E——F+=—HA=+—H
Cost A E 1,998
Accumulated depreciation REIE (1,066)
Net book amount BREFE 932

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

Goodwill SR

Group

KE
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Goodwill GRS 327,689 330,370
At 1 January ®R—HA—A” 330,370 313,609
Exchange difference X ZE 5 (2,681) 16,761
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 327,689 330,370

Goodwill is allocated to groups of cash generating units (“CGUSs”) in
the same geographical location with similar principal activities. The
recoverable amount of each group of CGUs is determined based on
value-in-use calculations. Cash flow projection for impairment review is
based on budget prepared on the basis of assumptions reflective of the
prevailing market conditions. Key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations include:

(@  Cash flows were projected based on actual operating results and
the five-year business plan.

(b)  The anticipated annual revenue growth rate included in the cash
flow projections is 10% (2010: 10%).

(c) A pre-tax discount rate at 31 December 2011 of 7.6% (2010:
7.6%) was applied in determining the recoverable amount of the
CGUs. The discount rate used reflects the risk-free rate and the
premium for specific risks relating to the business units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s
assessment of future trends in the IT industry and are based on both
external sources and internal sources and both past performance (historical
data) and its expectations for market development.

Group management believes that any reasonably possible changes
in the above key assumptions applied are not likely to cause the
recoverable amount to be materially lower than the carrying amount of
goodwill.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries 7. REBRARIZERE

Company
VN
2011 2010
% —EF-T%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Investments at cost & KA
— Shares listed in Singapore — ¥ Em kG, 1,218,903 1,218,903
— Unlisted investments, at cost — WA ERAE 174,995 174,995
1,393,898 1,398,898
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as R-ZE——F+_A=+—"HBZ2XEHK
follows: BARZFBMAT
Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered Percentage of
Name establishment place of operations capital interest held
(Note a) Directly Indirectly
MR FTEEBR BRITRA FEERED L
£ B 3L b B R B BN HiE SIE:=
(Ktita)
VST Group Limited British Virgin Investment holding, 4 ordinary shares of 100% =
Islands British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BEHEEEBERAA RERERHS BEZER - AN% &R E B 100% —
RERTHS 1€ 2 BB
Shenzhen VST Grand PRC Distribution of IT RMB100,000,000 100% —
Electronic Co., Ltd. products in the PRC
AINECREEF A A B 5 85 & 5 A K #100,000,000 7T 100% =
BRAF] RHRE
VST Computers (H.K.) Hong Kong Distribution of IT 2 ordinary shares of = 100%
Limited products in Hong Kong HK$1 each
BLEEMK(EH) BB REBDHEM 2R EREE — 100%
BRA A BHERE 1T 2 iR
62,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
62,000,000 fi%
BREE1EITL
AR IR T AR D
BAEZERERAE —T——FFR e



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

7. Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

7. RMBRATRZRE @

Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered Percentage of
Name establishment place of operations capital interest held
(Note a) Directly Indirectly
g FTEEBR BERITRA FEERBED L
=E FR 3L 3t B A i B HEMEARFE H#E R
(Ktata)
IEREEEERER PRC Distribution of IT RMB10,000,000 — 100%
BRRAF products in the PRC
IEREEEERER H R E 5 85 & 5 A R #10,000,0007T — 100%
BRAA RHRE
ECS Holdings Limited Singapore Investment holding and 365,360,174 ordinary 89.66% =
distribution of IT shares of S$0.3088
products, provision of IT each
services and enterprise
systems in Singapore
EARKEBER A A 7% RET IR EREZER -~ 365,360,174 % 89.66% —
DIHEARRERM - 5 % T f80.3088
R E AR RRE g T 2 E AR
KR
EC Sure Holdings Thailand Investment holding 196,000 preferred shares, = 89.66%
(Thailand) Co., in Thailand non-accumulative
Limited dividend, Baht 1.25 per
share; and 204,000
ordinary shares,
Baht 1.25 per share
EC Sure Holdings ZE REENEREZR 196,000 A% 18 56 A% - — 89.66%
(Thailand) Co., FERFRE - B
Limited E{E1.25F 4k
5.204,000 A% & i A% -
A% [ (B 1.25 %% £k
The Value Systems Thailand Provider of information 7,783,000 shares = 89.66%
Co., Limited technology products of 10 Baht each
and services for IT
infrastructure in Thailand
The Value Systems = FEEMMRER K 7,783,000 3% — 89.66%
Co., Limited B R AR R BREEI10REK
BR 75 14 FE 75 Z &t
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Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

7. RMBRARZRE @

Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered Percentage of
Name establishment place of operations capital interest held
(Note a) Directly Indirectly
MR FEEBR BRITRAE FEERED L
=E FR 3L 3t B A i B HEMEARFE H#E R
(Ktata)
ECS Vietnam Company  Vietnam Trading of information US$100,000 - 89.66%
Limited and communications
technology products
and services
ECS Vietnam Company i & B RBAREESE  100,0003% T — 89.66%
Limited BR#%% 3 5
ECS Computers Singapore Provider of information 13,600,000 ordinary — 89.66%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd technology products shares of S$1 each
and services for IT
infrastructure
in Singapore
ECS Computers N TN & SRR E 13,600,000 i% & i% I (& — 89.66%
(Asia) Pte. Ltd. KB B B R 1HET N T 2 AR
PR 7% 1 FE 75
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) Singapore Retail of information 150,000 ordinary — 89.66%
Pte Ltd technology products, IT shares of S$1 each
equipment and
accessories in Singapore
Pacific City (Asia Pacific) %7 i3 RETMEEE 150,000 A% = 89.66%
Pte Ltd. BB RES SREE1FNET
BRI R E R 2 &R
RHEZE
Isan System Pte Ltd. Singapore Provision and distribution 2 ordinary shares of = 89.66%
of information technology S$1 each
products and general
trading of IT equipment
in Singapore
Isan System Pte Ltd. o FRET I3 1R 4 & o 88 2RI EE = 89.66%
BB RER K 1T T 2 E @R
HE—REARK
REEH
BAEZERERAE —T——FFR
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries continveo) 7. RBARZRE #

Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered Percentage of
Name establishment place of operations capital interest held
(Note a) Directly Indirectly
AR FEEBR BRITRA R
£ B b B R B SEMEARFE =3 i =
(Hizta)
ECS Enterprise Singapore Distribution of IT solutions 5,000,000 ordinary — 89.66%
Solutions Pte Ltd shares of S$1 each
ECS Enterprise 7 N3 DIHEME K E® 5,000,000 % & Ik E & — 89.66%
Solutions Pte Ltd 1ET N3 T 2 B AR
ECS Technology Hong Kong Investment holding, 11,500,000 ordinary = 89.66%
(China) Limited provider of information shares of HK$1 each
technology products and
services for IT
infrastructure
in Hong Kong
ECS Technology BE REZR - 11,500,000 % & A% E & — 89.66%
(China) Limited BAEARKER 18T 2 EimR
RAE B E
2%t AR 75 L FE 7
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$10,000,000 = 89.66%
(Guangzhou) technology products and
Company Limited services for [T
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology A FEEMBIRER R 10,000,000 3 T — 89.66%
(Guangzhou) BB A R
Company Limited AR 75 4 FE 7S
ECS Technology PRC Provider of information US$1,282,000 = 89.66%
Company Limited technology products and
services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Technology SRl B EE AR E R & 1,282,000 7T - 89.66%
Company Limited B R R
PR 75 1 FE 75
ECS (Shanghai) PRC Provider of information US$25,000,000 — 89.66%
Management Co., Ltd technology products and
services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS (Shanghai) A FEEMBRER R 25,000,000 7T — 89.66%
Management Co., Ltd BRI E SR
B 75 14 FE 75
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Investments in Subsidiaries continueq)

7. RMBRARZRE @

Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered Percentage of
Name establishment place of operations capital interest held
(Note a) Directly Indirectly
g FTEEBR BERITRA FEERBED L
=E FR 3L 3t B A i B HEMEARFE H#E R
(Ktata)
ECS China Technology PRC Provider of information US$15,000,000 = 89.66%
(Shanghai) Company technology products and
Limited services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS China Technology BB AR E R 15,000,000 % 7T — 89.66%
(Shanghai) Company BB ERER
Limited AR 7% 14 FE 7S
ECS Beijing PRC Provider of information US$1,000,000 - 89.66%
Chuang Yue technology products and
Technology Co., Ltd services for IT
infrastructure in the PRC
ECS Beijing & FEE R Em R 1,000,000 7T = 89.66%
Chuang Yue R #3709
Technology Co., Ltd PR 7% £ FE 75
EIT Info-tech Limited Hong Kong Provider of information US$5,000,000 - 89.66%
technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in
the PRC
EIT Info-tech Limited BB PEEARRERK 5,000,000 % J© — 89.66%
BB A R
PR 75 £ & 75
ECS Technology Hong Kong Provider of information US$10,000,000 = 89.66%
(HK) Co., Limited technology products
and services for IT
infrastructure in
the PRC
ECS Technology FE PEEABRERK 10,000,000 7& — 89.66%
(HK) Co., Limited BB B E
PR 75 £ & 7
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd Singapore Distributor of information 2,524,785 ordinary - 79.90%
technology products shares, issued and
in Singapore paid up capital:
US$1,615,392
ECS Indo Pte. Ltd IR N B AR R E 2,524,785 8 B B 1T K = 79.90%
D IHE R L BAR
1,615,392 J©
BAEZERERAE —T——FFR
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7. Investments in Subsidiaries continveo) 7. RRBARZERE

Place of Particulars of issued
incorporation/ Principal activities and share capital/registered Percentage of
Name establishment place of operations capital interest held
(Note a) Directly Indirectly
MR FTEXBR BRITRA FsERED L
£ B b B R B SEMEARFE =3 i =
(Ktita)
PT ECS Indo Jaya Indonesia Distributor of information 100,000 ordinary = 79.90%
technology products shares of US$1 each
in Indonesia
PT ECS Indo Jaya ENfE ENJE & M BHX E 100,000 f% & AR E & — 79.90%
DI E 1Rz EmR
ECS Infocom (Phils) Singapore Investment holding 2 ordinary shares — 89.66%
Pte. Ltd in Singapore of S$1 each
ECS Infocom (Phils) N3 RETMERERETER 2REREEIFMET — 89.66%
Pte. Ltd ZEBR
Note: Hiat -
(@) All subsidiaries are limited liability companies except for those established (@) BRPEEKR IO B AT AT EE

in the PRC, which are wholly-owned foreign enterprises.

©EN REMBRRERBERAR -

8. Amount Due to a Subsidiary 8. EMNMEDAHE

& 1< B B A B 3k 18 173,594,00078 Tt (=
T — T 4F : 91,888,000 7T ) B £ 3K 3 -

The amount due to a subsidiary of HK$173,594,000 (2010:
HK$91,888,000) is unsecured, interest-free, denominated in HK$ and

is repayable on demand.

28 AETHEREREREEE -

9. Interest in Associates 9. REZNTHRES
Group
rE
2011 2010
—2-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FABT
Unlisted FLEmHm
Share of net assets DIEFEE 55,272 47,400
Loan to an associate M N R ERK 3,498 3,545
58,770 50,945
Listed outside Hong Kong EBUNMMEELET
Share of net assets DIEFEE 218,277 201,060
277,047 252,005
Market value of listed shares EmREMEAE 150,857 166,548
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9. Interest in Associates coninued 9. REEQNTMNESR
Details of the associates as at 31 December 2011 are as follows: RZE——FF+_A=+—HBZEAQF
RIFFENT
Equity interest held by
the Group
Country of Particulars of issued AERE AR 2 BR
Name incorporation Principal activities shares held 2011 2010
e T
Z18 HAMAZER FEEE R 13 7 15 —E-——F —E-ZF
MSI-ECS Phils., Inc Philippines Distribution of IT 3,097,055 ordinary 49.99% 49.99%
products shares of Peso 100 each
MS-ECS Phils., Inc ~ JEE# DHEARRER 3,097,055k B R E &
1008 &= 2 & @Ak
ECSICT Berhad Malaysia Provision of information 120,000,000 ordinary 1% 41%
technology shares of RM0.5 each
and services for
[T infrastructure
in Malaysia
ECSICT Berhad BRAR AERAGEMBE 120,000,000/ & K EE
BB A AR 055 %z LmR
KRR 7%
The loan to an associate is denominated in US$ and is unsecured, ] B & N &) ﬁ”»\ AZETTEHE ¥ AEIR
interest-free and not expected to be recovered within one year. .58 TEHR—FRNKE -
The summarised financial information of the associates as at 31 RZE——F+_HA=+—"H8 BEZ2Q
December 2011 are as follows: A BERBMNT
Group
&
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Assets BE 1,314,486 1,184,870
Liabilities BE (664,539) (699,661)
Equity = 649,947 585,209
Revenue e 25 4,793,988 4,054,216
Profit St 7] 93,178 86,372

BAZRERIE —T——F4R o
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10. Trade and Other Receivables

10 EZ R EMEWKIE

Group Company
AEE RNAF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF —E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTET FHBT FExT FHBIT
Trade receivables, net & 5 e W 3k B 3 58 3,429,086 3,593,978 - —
Other receivables and  H ] & U 3018 K
prepayments TEAF B 599,104 570,387 345 340
Deferred expenses RIER
(Note 16(g)) (Bt 7 16()) 34,762 - - -
4,062,952 4,164,365 345 340
Less: Non-current B R HR A
deferred expenses (K1 5% 16())
(Note 16 (g)) (19,854) = - =
4,043,098 4,164,365 345 340

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade and
other receivables as the Group has large number of customers and
counterparties.

The Group grants credit period to third party customers ranging
from 7 to 150 days, which may be extended for selected customers
depending on their trade volume and settlement history with the Group.
The ageing analysis of net trade receivables by invoice date is as

HRAKBEEAEEPERXZHTFT &
AEBENE S REMEKFIAL EEP
SERR -

AEBBTE=ZABTEFZEEHN T7
1508 MERNEBEFZEEMH] FIE
E HBIESEHASEZRSGERMEK
CEME - BHREKEFEREER

follows: HETZREDITAT ¢

Group

RE
2011 2010
—E2——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET THT
0-30 days 0% 30H 2,220,954 2,109,784
31-60 days 31£60H 601,529 923,705
61-90 days 61£290H 226,079 314,609
Over 90 days HiBmo0H 380,524 245,880
3,429,086 3,593,978
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

10. Trade and Other Receivables continueo) 10 ESREMERIES
As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of HK$864,361,000 (2010: N—_E——F+_A=+—H ' BE&j
HK$705,189,000), which were fully performing, were past due but B 17 &) & 5 FE U 5% 1H864,361,000/%8 JT
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for (ZZ—Z 4 : 705,189,000/ 7T) & i@ Hf
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these BERE ZEREEZEBIYRF,A
trade receivables is as follows: M BREHRLUEENLE - ZFEH

FEURIER BRER DT AR T -

Group

E
2011 2010
S —z-=z%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBx FAT
0-30 days 0£30H 537,482 498,860
31-60 days 31260H 145,207 104,679
61-90 days 612 90H 65,857 44,145
Over 90 days HiBo0H 115,815 57,505
864,361 705,189
As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables of HK$148,280,000 (2010: RZE——F+=ZA=+—H B5E

HK$94,885,000) were impaired and full provision has been made. The W FX 75148,280,0008 L (=& — T F ¢

ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows: 94,885,000/ 7T) BB E - WE {EH 2

Bl ZSRMRENER ST T

Group
TE
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
0-90 days 0£90H 13,359 =
Over 90 days H#®90H 134,921 94,885
148,280 94,885

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

. fv] Ed =
10. Trade and Other Receivables continueq 10 EZREMEWRRE S
Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as follows: B RWHRIBRENZSOT
Group
rE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
At 1 January n—HA—H 94,885 70,533
Provision B 57,435 25,330
Receivables written off during the year B RS A S AT UK (D] A FE U
as uncollectible KIA (4,249) (1,918)
Dilution and partial disposal of a subsidiary H & — K& A 7305 2
to an assoicate =Y N - (3,498)
Exchange difference E X ZE 5 209 4,438
At 31 December R+-—_BA=+—H 148,280 94,885
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables were denominated BEREMEINZIBEREINTY G
in the following currencies: H1E :
Group Company
wE AAFE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F —T-ZF —E-—-F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FTER FHET
HK$ BT 4,129 4,232 345 340
RMB AR 2,168,641 2,317,030 - —
S$ N T 302,219 282,365 - -
uss$ ETT 939,250 846,006 - -
THB Rk 602,438 667,100 - —
RP E& 26,421 47,632 - =
4,043,098 4,164,365 345 340
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their ARABEREHRNEE  WE S REME
fair values due to their short-term maturities. WHRIEMEREEELAFEES -
The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the balance sheet date is REEBNEERRERA EIE SN
the carrying value of the trade and other receivables above. The Group HWEWRRIEOERE - A& EI &%
did not hold any collateral as security. BERERIEAER-
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither ma s R ERNE 5 R E 4 ERRIED
past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to historical FEEEENZ2EZLXZHFNBAEENR
information about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties BRFE BAXSHFEATEEX
do not have significant defaults in the past. BH o
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11.

12.

For the year ended 31

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
December 2011 #E= =T ——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

. A
Inventories . 78
Group
RE
2011 2010
S —-T%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHExT FAT
Inventories on hand held for re-sale BFEHEBEEFHEES 1,772,795 1,597,048
Inventories-in-transit EERTE 354,525 388,568
2,127,320 1,985,616

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is

shown in note 21.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

ERRRAXZFESBZ O RM T
21

2RERATEEY

Group Company
AEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FERT FABT
Cash at bank andinhand $E1TIFE R K EFR & 1,423,214 909,863 2,121 847
Short-term bank deposits 45 BR 4R 7717 2k
(Note a) (Kizta) 149,920 105,388 - —
Cash and cash equivalents IR & R & FEY 1,573,134 1,015,251 2,121 847

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were denominated

in the following currencies:

6 RIS % W AR A DA T 3 S
H:

Group Company
K& PN

2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-% —E-2f S -z
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FTERT FET TER FHET
HK$ BT 7,746 24,481 1,074 76
us$ E7T 653,680 324,427 33 18
RMB (Note b) AR (KiaEb) 749,462 560,260 - =
S$ g T 126,306 93,177 1,014 753
THB e 32,421 6,689 - —
RP ENEfE 3,519 6,217 - —
1,573,134 1,015,251 2,121 847
BAEZERERAE —T——FFR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

12. Cash and Cash Equivalents continueq NHRERBEEEEDN »

Notes: Htat -

(@)  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.45% (2010: @ BEHERTERZERTAEXEL0.45%
0.53%) per annum. These deposits have an average maturity of 9.95 days (ZE—TF:053%)  ZETFARZF
(2010: 10.5 days). BB BB BIGBE(ZE—2F:105

H) -

()  The Group’s bank balances and deposits denominated in RMB are ) AEEAAREFABECRITERRT
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB RIEHRRE 2 RIT e RIRZEFEUA
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds REFECEBHRRBINERBESED
out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange BB E ST B BT BT B 2 INEE B
control promulgated by the government of the PRC. il 47 Bl KA Bl o

13. Share Capital 13. A&
2011 2010
—E-——F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Authorised: ERE
2,000,000,000 (2010: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (ZZ—= % : 2,000,000,000) i%
HRAEECI Btz @R 200,000 200,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ERTERBRCETEIR
2011 2010
—E—-—F —ET-FF

Number of issued Number of issued

ordinary shares of ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each Par value HK$0.1 each Par value

BREE A& E A

018 T 0.1% 7T

Ze BT 2 BT
ZERHEAE H{E TimakE A EE
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FAET
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 1,258,888,665 125,889 1,258,888,665 125,889

Repurchase of own B8 [0 A & % 9

shares (Note a) (Kt ata) (18,232,000) (1,823) — —
At 31 December R+=—_A=+—8H 1,240,656,665 124,066 1,258,888,665 125,889
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

13. Share Capital continved) 13. R A 40
Notes: HiaE -
(@ Repurchase of own shares @ BEXsRH
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company repurchased its REZE-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—81t
own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows: FEARARBRFAERERS KRG
IR
Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares Highest price Lowest price purchase
repurchased paid per share paid per share price paid
Month of repurchase §EE A 4 BEZERHE CENSRESENER ENSRBEER ENEBEER
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
May 2011 —T—%FAA 570,000 1.76 1.74 996,760
October 2011 —ZT——%1+A 2,008,000 0.79 0.71 1,513,840
November 2011 —Z—%+—A 6,648,000 1.26 1.04 7,518,880
December 2011 —Z—%F+=-H 9,006,000 1.10 0.88 8,725,500
18,232,000 18,754,980
The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued share EROBROERTHE MARARMNE B
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these TR E B b3 72 S IR 5 E B HIUR 4R
shares. Pursuant to Companies Law (revised) of the Cayman Islands, an BREHSQANEEEE) HERE
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled of o $5 A% 10 T 1B 1,823,000 T £ 3B
HK$1,823,000 was transferred from the retained earnings to the capital CERBANERETEARNEDR HE - B
redemption reserve. The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of B % 15 &) B 32 5 4 & 16,932,000/ 7T B
HK$16,932,000 was charged to the retained earnings. BREBABFME -
(b) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the balance b) REEAXRIBRARTEZERESE
sheet date A
Exercise price 2011 2010
Exercise period 1TEH TEE —B——fF —E-ZF
20 February 2009 to —ETNF-A=tAZE HK$0.54 5,000,000 5,000,000
19 February 2019 —ZT-NF=ZA+AhA 0.64/7T
17 February 2013 to —T—=F-A+tA=E HK$2.672 10,400,000 —
16 February 2021 —TE——®F—A+XH 2.6727 7T
23 March 2013 to —T—=F=A=-+=H= HK$2.434 4,700,000 —
22 March 2021 T —F=A=+=H 2.4347 7T
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share of the SHERERTHEAENRE K
Company. Further details of these options are set out in note 14 to the KRR ERE ZEBBREZE—FF
financial statements. BERBEHREN 14

BHERERAE —T— —FFR e
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment

(@)

Share option scheme of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on
17 April 2002 whereby the Directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees (including both
full time and part time employees, and executive Directors), non-
executive Directors, suppliers, customers and other corporations
or individuals that provide support to the Group (as defined in the
share option scheme) to take up options to subscribe for shares
of the Company. The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the share option scheme
may not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The subscription price is determined by the Company’s Board of
Directors and will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s ordinary shares; (i) the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii)
the average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer. The options vest immediately at the date of grant
and are then exercisable within a period of ten years. Each share
option gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

During the year, 10,400,000 and 4,900,000 share options were
granted to employees and directors (both executive and non-
executive) on 17 February 2011 and 23 March 2011 respectively.
No share options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2010.

No option were exercised during the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: nil).

e VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% ¥R 2R Bt 5 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 =T ——F+_A=+—HIFE

14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continvegy 14 LJ\ BOXHZzEREE

FIE (%)
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ AraEERESS @
()  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, ) UTARLBREZK
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of shares RAERGEH BEZF —
for the year ended 31 December 2011: —F+_A=+—81t

B rERKRESDZEB
ENMRRPDER -

Outstandingat ~ Granted  Lapsed Outstanding at Exercisable at Exercise Contractual Remaining
1 January during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting term of contractual
Date of grant 2011 theyear theyear 2011 2011 (HK$) conditions options life
R-B-——-F RZB--F
R=B--% +=A +=A
-B-B REAR RER =t-H =t-B fRE HBRE B3
BEAH CEXR:d Rl P CES R AFaE  (Ex) BEKAE ANFE ANEH
Directors Ex
20 February 2009 —ZZhE 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.54 Nil & 10 Years 7.14 Years
—A=+H 105 7145
23 March 2011 —E—-F — 4,900,000 (200,000 4,700,000 - 2434 2Yearsfrom 10 Years 9.23 Years
=A=+=H date of grant 105 9.23%F
AREAH
BItmE
Employees &8
17 February 2011 —Z——%f — 10,400,000 - 10,400,000 - 2.672 2Yearsfrom 10 Years 9.14 Years
—AttR date of grant 106 9145
EfgzE:
EEmE

5,000,000 15,300,000  (200,000) 20,100,000 5,000,000

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continveg 14 AR XN 2 R &

;IH (&)
(@) Share option scheme of the Company (continued) @ ArAERESTS @
(i)  The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, i HKATRTEHBREZK
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of shares AEGEH BE T —
for the year ended 31 December 2010: TE+_A=+—H1t

FE -FMAEBRESAN

EMRBRDER -

Outstandingat ~ Granted ~ Lapsed Outstandingat Exercisable at Exercise Contractual ~ Remaining
1 January during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting termof  contractual
Date of grant 2010 theyear theyear 2010 2010 (HK$)  conditions options life
R-T-FF RoF-F
i S 33 T-A +=-A
—A—HB REAN RER =+-H =t-H TEE R Fler
KL B# HARTHE Rit P AT TR (B) EBBHRE /0FH /0FH
Directors s
20 February 2009 Z=FZNF 5,000,000 = = 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.54 Ni %  10Years 82 Years
—“A=+H 106 8.26F
5,000,000 = = 5,000,000 5,000,000
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment coniney ~ 14. SA R BE2EREH

I ()
(@) Share option scheme of the Company continued) @ ZAABIERESTE @
(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions i) BREAFEERRRE
The fair value of services received in return for share BEE B IR R P B 1S AR 15
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value ZAFEDZEREHER
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of 2 AFEFE MELE
the share options granted is measured based on a &tz A FEIRE=1ERX
trinomial model. The contractual life of the share option is B (e - BRECEOTF
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early HAERMAZZEN - HiE
exercise are incorporated into the trinomial lattice model. BOFEcEBITIBAZE =18

ABEHERN -

Fair value of share options and assumption are as follows: BN TERRZER
T
2011 2010
2% —T-T%
Fair value at measurement date RErEHHZAFE HK$1.35 HK$0.40
1.358 7T 0.4078 7T
Share price (& HK$2.54 HK$0.54
2.5478 T 0.54 7T,
Exercise price 1TEE HK$2.60 HK$0.54
2.605E T 0.547 7T
Expected volatility TE B R 61.6% 67.3%
Option life BB R 10 years 10 years
+& &
Expected dividends TEEARR B, 4.3% =
Risk-free interest rate A2 B A6 2 2.8% 1.7%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility. TEHIR IR Th AE LR IR B E
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. EoFAHBKRETDRESL %
Change in the subjective input assumptions could RERE - T BB ARR
materially affect the fair value estimate. PR HATFEMBABKE 7<
A0

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continueq)

(b)

Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”)

The Company’s subsidiary, ECS, has a share option scheme, the
ECS Share Option Scheme Il (“Scheme II”), which was adopted
on 18 December 2000 whereby the directors of ECS are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite ECS’s employees and
directors, including non-executive directors of ECS and its
subsidiaries (‘ECS Group”) to take up options to subscribe for
shares of ECS. The subscription price is determined by the
ECS’s Board of Directors and is set either at (i) a price equal to
the average of the last dealt price of ECS’s share for the three
consecutive trading days immediately preceding the grant of the
option (i) a discount to the market price not exceeding 20% of
the market price in respect of that option. Each share option
gives the holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
ECS. The options vest after one year from the date of grant and
are then exercisable at any time after the first anniversary of the
grant date and in case of option with exercise price set at a
discount, at any time after the second anniversary of date of
grant and those granted to non-executive directors are
exercisable up to the fifth anniversary of the date of grant. The
scheme will continue to be in force at the discretion of the
compensation committee of ECS, subject to a maximum period
of ten years commencing 13 December 2000.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continueq)

(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS
Holdings Limited (“ECS”) (continueq)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows,
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of
shares for the year ended 31 December 2011:

14 UROXNTZ2EEEER

I8 &)

(b)

B ARERARBEERA
A ([EARAR]) B9 B IR FE
8@

() ATABRLEREZERR
BHE - BE_Z——F+=
A=+—BLtFE FBEE

REYBEBERIMNKRMDE

&

Weighted
average
Outstandingat Granted Lapsed Outstandingat Exercisable at Exercise Contractual  remaining
1 January during during 31 December 31 December price Vesting term of contractual
Date of grant 2011  theyear theyear 2011 2011 (S$) conditions options life
RZB-—-% RZB--F
R-B--% = =] i
-B-8 RER RER =+-H =t-H TEE BRE TINK
REBH i AT R B P i RAT TFTHE FmgEn) BEEE SOFE ANEFH
Directors B3

15 October 2010 —Z—Z4F 1,900,000 - - 1,900,000 1,900,000 0.55 1 Year 5t010 3.8t08.8
+A+AA from date Years Years

of grant
AR AH 5Z10% 3.8Z88%F

Bit—%F

Employees &8

15 October 2010 —Z—Z & 11,870,000 - (920,000) 10,950,000 10,950,000 0.55 1 Year 5t010 3.8t088
+A+HA from date Years Years

of grant
BELAE  5Z10F 38Z88F

Bit—%F

13,770,000 - (920,000) 12,850,000 12,850,000

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continvegy 14, AR 10 2 4% 2 #E 25 45 B XX

15 (@)
(b) Share option scheme of a subsidiary — ECS b MBAREARARHEERA
Holdings Limited (“ECS”) (continued) ) ([ERBR]) BB IR E
5t 81 )
B8] (/E
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (i) AT AREDEBRREZ KR
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of kiEH B2 —ZTF
shares for the year ended 31 December 2010: +ZA=+—HLEFE"
FTBEBRELHUNEMRZN
f&in & & -
Weighted
average
Outstandingat ~ Granted Lapsed Outstanding at Exercisable at Contractual ~ remaining
1 January during during 31 December 31 December Exercise Vesting termof ~ contractual
Date of grant 2010 theyear the year 2010 2010 price (S§)  conditions options life
RZE-%
RZZ-ZF F
R-B-2F T=A +=A il
—A—H RER RER == =+—-H 16t f8 BRE THAK
R A W AT Fili £ WMATE  ATFAE FNET) BEKH AOFH AHFH
Directors Bz
15 October 2010 —E—E4 — 1,900,000 — 1900000 = 055  1Year  5t010 481098
+A+AaA from date Years Years
of grant
ARHASE  5E105  48%98F
et —F
Employees EE8
15October 2010 —E—T& — 11,870,000 — 11,870,000 = 055  1Year 51010 481098
+A+HA from date Years Years
of grant
BRLES  5E105F  48F98F
i —F
— 13,770,000 — 13770000 =
The fair value of the share option granted is measured by ERHERENRFEDZ
reference to ECS share price as at year end. EFRERBRERETE -
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility. TEERE T IRE LIRIER
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends. B BEHREDERRELRE
Change in the subjective input assumptions could S - FBHEBRRINE D
materially affect the fair value estimate. A AFEMTERE

By 488
FE o
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14. Equity-Settled Share-Based Payment continvegy 14 L,L BN z2EREE

MIH @)

(c) Share option of a subsidiary — ECS Indo Pte Ltd (“ECS ) K B - 7] ECS Indo Pte Ltd
Indo”) (FECSIndoJ Ay B8 IR A 5t &l
On 16 October 2009, ECS Indo granted 120,000 share options R-_ZEZTAF+ A +/58:ECS
to four senior employees of a subsidiary of ECS Indo. Each Indo[A]ECS Indo iff & 22 &) 9 P8 & =
option is, upon full payment of the exercise price, convertible into & B % H1120,00017 38 % # o &
one new ordinary share of ECS Indo. The options are exercisable MERERNBHZINITEER
at any time within 3 years from the grant date and are settled by A & ¥ A ECS Indo— AE#7 @ A% -
physical delivery of shares. ZEEREARLEBAHE=FR

ABERITE  WIABMZ MG &
% o
The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, whereby LA A 85 R AR A 2 R R s i
all options are settled by physical delivery of shares: MABEREDUNEDZFKRMK
we
Outstandingat1  Outstanding at Exercise Exercisable at  Contractual
January 31 December price Vesting 31 December term of
Date of grant 2010/2011 2010/2011 (US$) conditions 2010/2011 options
R=-B-BF/
R=-Z2-2§/ —E2-——F R=—B-%F/
—g——% +=A =F--F
=E=[E Ear=1[ THEE +=ZA=+—H B8 I 7
B BEH R AT i R AT (7)) BEKHE AT EHEH
Employees E&
16 October 2009 —ZEZ N F 118,392 118,392 1.8156 Nil 113,392 3 Years
+A+AHA i 3
The fair value of such equity-settled share-based payments was U HZ T z2EEmE&EEREZR
determined based on adjusted market comparables. FEDBEEAEMS A& &K
HETE o

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @
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15. Reserves 15. &
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each NEBEAER SR DY & H K4
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BONEHEHRNCEEREHR - AFE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in MBAFENRRARDRSRERD E
the Company’s individual components of equity between the beginning B FBERN T

and the end of current and prior year are set out below:

Company VNN
Capital
Share redemption Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
=
R EE EBORFE EBEXFEE RERA st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAT FAET FAT FET
(Note) (Note) (Note)
(Bt &) (Bt77) (K1 5£)

Balance at 1 January 2010 R-_T—TF

—H— B 774,195 2,643 1,978 218,299 997,115
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A3 Fl) K2
income for the year >HE AR = = = 49,342 49,342
Balance at 31 December 2010 R =T — T4
+t=ZA=+—~8
B 4 84 774,195 2,643 1,978 267,641 1,046,457
Balance at 1 January 2011 R-_T——&F
— A —HBHHB&ER 774,195 2,643 1,978 267,641 1,046,457
Profit and total comprehensive 4 A % Fl) K2
income for the year ZHE A B — — — 61,439 61,439
Repurchase of own shares B A& B
— Par value paid —BEfNEE = = 8,586 = 8,586
— Premium paid — B E — — — (16,932) (16,932)
— Transfer between reserves ~ — fif # ] 98 3 — 1,823 — (1,823) —
Balance at 31 December 2011 A —ZT——4
+=—A=+—8H
B 45 85 774,195 4,466 10,564 310,325 1,099,550
Representing: K&
Reserves 1 999,550
Proposed dividend Ik AR B, 100,000
1,099,550
Note: Bt et -
See notes to the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the nature and BEZEBERERN BREGERZEHRE
purpose of reserves. B 5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
jﬁ%*ﬁ% MT? (IHE~
T——&E+_A=+-—RAILFEE

16. Trade and Other Payables

16. E 5 R H M ENRKE

Group Company
A%E ART
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--% —T-BF -¥--F -2-BF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA& T FET FH&T
Trade payables Z S EMNRIE 3,398,019 3,354,143 — —
Other payables H i FE S 5K I8 &
and accruals FEETF I8 314,748 357,086 86 183
Deferred income (Note (e))  3EIEU A ( WEI @) 42,410 8,738 - -
3,755,177 3,719,967 86 183
Less: Non-current o FEMBIETE
deferred income (Note () YA (At iE(e)) (23,549) (3,454) - =
3,731,628 3,716,513 86 183
(@)  The Group’s suppliers grant credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 @ AEEBs7HERGTAEEZE
days to the Group. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as EHN TI0ENVH B 5 EMNK
follows: HZREDTWT :
Group
rE
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FE T
0-60 days 0£60H 3,269,280 3,307,467
Over 60 days HBiE60 128,739 46,676
3,398,019 3,354,143
(o)  The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate to their fair ) BERBREBHRNIE ZEEHE
values due to their short-term maturities. NHRENEAERERAFEESE

BAZERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

=z =
16. Trade and Other Payables coninued) 16. ES RHEMENSRE
() The carrying amounts of trade and other payables were 0 EBSFZRHEMENRBEERBEAT
denominated in the following currencies: HEEEEE :
Group Company
HEE eI
2011 2010 2011 2010
— —E—E2F —2-—-F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FET FET FAT
HK$ BT 15,668 7,629 86 183
RMB AR 1,409,332 1,653,004 - —
S$ N3 T 243,980 154,242 - —
uss$ ET 1,768,261 1,697,774 - —
THB £ 73 286,925 302,561 - -
RP EEeE 7,462 1,303 - -
3,731,628 3,716,513 86 183
(d) Included in other payables and accruals is an amount o HtENKREBEREFREBRED
HK$12,460,000 (2010:HK$5,256,000) which relates to non- 212,460,000 L (Z T — T F :
deliverable foreign exchange forward contract. The notional 5,256,0003% 7T) A B 1 7] 32+ S B
amount of foreign exchange forward contracts has been REHAEN - IINERHEANEEER
disclosed in note 3.1(a). RETE3 1@ HEE -
(e) Deferred income and expenses relate to fees billed/paid in ) ETEUA KL ETE LT A
advance on service maintenance contracts. BERAMNRBHEESANER -

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

17. Deferred Taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method.

Movement in net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

17.

i SE B A

ERERBADNEABINEREEESEH

5o

EEBREE/ (BB FEEPNT :

Group
KE
2011 2010
e i —T-T4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT FHET
At 1 January n—A—H 17,922 25,652
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated AR A BER
income statement (Note 23) (Hf7£23) 6,002 (6,326)
Dilution and partial disposal of a subsidiary H & — & i B A 7 £ 15 #E 25
to an associate {8 Ak A B = A\ - (3,124)
Exchange difference b H =58 (1,309) 1,720
At 31 December Rt+t-—A=+—H 22,619 17,922
Movements of the gross deferred tax assets and liabilities during the FAMEEHELEERBEAEZN
year are as follows: T ¢
Group
RE
2011 2010
Deferred tax assets — EEEEE — —E——F —E-ZF
Inventories and FEREZENW HK$’000 HK$’000
trade receivables provisions FIERE F#B T FE T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 42,008 36,802
Credited to the consolidated FFAMREE@mE
income statement 9,217 6,578
Dilution and partial disposal of a subsidiary H & — R K& A 7305 2
to an associate 2 5k A B = A 7 - (3,403)
Exchange difference b H =% (1,603) 2,031
At 31 December W-E=H=+—FH 49,622 42,008

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+-_A=+—HBILFE

1 7 Deferl‘ed TaXation (continued) 1 7 ﬁ ﬁ ﬁ: IE (&)
Group
rE
2011 2010
Deferred tax liabilities — EEHESE — —E——F —E-TF
Accelerated tax depreciation EERBIETE HK$’000 HK$°000
FER FAT
At 1 January n—A—H (24,086) (11,150)
Charged to the consolidated REFEBERNE
income statement (3,215) (12,904)
Dilution and partial disposal of a subsidiary H & — K B 2 &) 5B 1) # 25
to an associate EID WY /NS - 279
Exchange difference PEH =58 298 (311)
At 31 December R+-—BA=+—H (27,003) (24,086)
. 1t
18. Borrowings 18. (B &
Group Company
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—g--% Z-T-%¥F <-B--% <—F-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FH&T FHET FE T
Non-current IERE
Unsecured bank borrowings & #EHRITEE (a) 665,403 613,502 — —
Secured mortgage loan BERBIZBER () 31,414 34,978 — —
Finance lease liabilities HmEHESRE (d) 610 1,624 — —
697,427 650,104 _ _
Current TE
Unsecured bank borrowings #EH R IRITEE (@) 1,169,188 986,720 - —
Secured bank borrowings B EIFRITEE (o) - 132,000 - 132,000
Secured mortgage loan BEFIRBE R (© 3,564 3,564 — —
Finance lease liabilities BEREAE (@) 795 1,012 — —
1,173,547 1,128,296 - 132,000
Total borrowings BniEs (e) 1,870,974 1,773,400 — 132,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

18. Borrowings continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Unsecured bank borrowings

The loans are unsecured and bear interests at rate as disclosed in section
(e) below. The loans are repayable within twelve months except for
syndicated loans amount of HK$605,403,000 (2010: HK$613,502,000)
which is repayable on 30 August 2013.

Secured bank borrowings

The term loan facility was interest-bearing at HIBOR plus 2.0% and was
secured by 51% shares of ECS Holdings Limited owned by the Company.
The loan had a term of three years commencing from the date of the
Term Loan Facility Agreement and repayable in five equal instalments
started on 30 September 2009 with the remaining instalments repayable
semi-annually. The loan was fully repaid on 11 April 2011.

Secured mortgage loan
The loan is secured by a building with net book value of HK$62,155,000
as at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$63,457,000).

Finance lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default.

18. B E )

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

EIEHEBRITHEE
ERABEEFRETXEHEEZ X
AE-BERERNEAREE  HR
B & 605,403,000 L (=T — T F :
613,502,000/ ) RIZER =T —=F N\
A=+HEE-

FERRITEE

EHMERBERBEBRITRAERE M
20%:t B WARREREEAMEKSE
RA AR AN HE 25 2 51% R4 » 7 B KA
EHEFBERZ A BEF AP =F
DHENESSHER BHNR_ZFF
NEFEAA=Z+HEN  ERENRARK
BEFEN BEFER_F——FHNA
T ABHEE -

FEARBER

R-E——%+-_A=+—H ExH
AR ¥ (B 462,155,000/ 7T 2 18 F 12
EH(ZZF—ZF : 63,457,000 7T) °

MEBENEE
HRENBHEEENENBE T H
BA BHEREREREHER-

Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx &L
Gross finance lease liabilities MEHEEELEE
— minimum lease payments: —HEBERE :
Within 1 year —F R 999 1,279
Between 1 and 5 years —FEERE 759 2,030
1,758 3,309
Future finance charges on finance leases MEHAENRRBE L (353) 673)
1,405 2,636
The present value of finance lease liabilities MEHEEED
is as follows: WEAT :
Within 1 year —FR 795 1,012
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF 610 1,624
1,405 2,636
BUHERERAT T FFR



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (4&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =T ——F+=-_A=+—HBILFE

. had _
18. Borrowings (continuec 18. fE & =)
Notes: (continued) MtaE - (&)
(e) At 31 December 2011, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as e RZTE——F+=_A=+—8 4%
follows: EEENEENT :
Group Company
AEH #27
Bank borrowings Financial lease liabilities Total Bank borrowings
RITHE BEHRSE &t RITHEE
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
-2--f -2-%F - CF-FF -%—§ -FBF % -F C-F-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Tl FHT FiET FET T FHT
Within 1 year —£R 1,172,752 1,122,284 795 1,012 1,173,547 1,123,296 - 132,000
Between 1 and 2 years —4 4 648,967 3,564 610 1,624 649,577 5,188 - =
Between 2and 5 years 714 % i 4 30,692 624,194 - - 30,602 624,194 - -
After 5 years BBAE 17,158 20,722 - = 17,158 20,722 - =
1,869,569 1,770,764 1,405 2,636 1,870,974 1,773,400 - 132,000
The effective interest rates were as follows: ERAMELT -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Unsecured bank borrowings EEHIRITEE 1.58%-10.45% 1.10%-5.10%
Secured bank borrowings EHEARITEER - 211%
Secured mortgage loan BEIZIBE R 0.99% 0.91%
Finance lease liabilities MEHEEE 7.00% 7.00%
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate to their fair values. BEENEREEEAAFEREE
The carrying amounts of the borrowings were denominated in the BEEMNREENTIEBE:
following currencies:
Group Company
AEH AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2——F —E—EF —E2——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FHT F& T
HKS$ BT 135,985 170,542 - 132,000
RMB AR 210,980 163,032 - —
S$ N T 37,124 9,235 - =
us$ ETT 1,327,727 1,229,423 - -
THB B3 7 132,397 201,168 — —
IDR EEeE 26,761 — - -
1,870,974 1,773,400 - 132,000
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19. Turnover and Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in a manner consistent with
the information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments. The Group’s most senior
executive management has been identified as the Board. In this regard,
the Group’s senior executive management monitors the results
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is the segment results,
including items specifically attributed to individual segments, such as
directors’ and auditors’ remuneration and other administration costs
within the segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the year is set out below.

(@) Business segments

The main business segments of the Group are the following:

19. ExBERDMBESR

DHERDERAKREZ&ESBITRE
BEABRFABOBRARD HEERE
EFMAEM—BZAAMGER - A& H
ZEREETBREEABRESRE -5t
ME ARBZSETHREREABRIA
TEEEZRUZHOMEMEZEE

Wa kAR REDBELENHER
MREENRAXOEEZS DL -

pa

DEEMZFAETERDAES
@Rl BRI EENRE - fINE
ZEEMNE R E D B8R Z TR

/E‘l

B
|

e i
%ﬁﬂﬁ

o

FAREBERERD B RFHDAFRRA
ZAHEDHBEREINMAT

B
A
i)
E

ETEXBEMET

Segments Principal activities

o FEXK

Distribution Distribution of IT products (desktop PCs, notebooks, tablets, handhelds, printers,
CPUs, hard disk, memory device, etc) for the commercial and consumer markets.

2 88 REERHEEM S D HE MBI E @ (i'EL i BEABER  TREMK -

FREMK - THK hREMESS  BR- LERS) -

Enterprise systems

Provider of enterprise system tools (middleware, operating systems, Unix/NT servers,

databases, storage and security products) for IT infrastructure.

TERES BB RERRIENCERG TE(PBEE  BIERLS - Uni/NT @RS - B

E-RERRRER) HES-

IT services
services.

BB RS BB ERR

RAT RBAT 1B

IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and support

J - R ERE -

BAZRERIA —T——FFRH
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19. Turnover and Segment Information continveo) 19. EZBER 2 HER @
(@) Business segments continued) @ Mo E @)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are BHE-_ZT——F+=-A=+—8H
as follows: IEFEEMDHEENT -
Enterprise
Distribution systems IT services Group
&
Kz ERK NE R FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTExT FTER TEx THET
Total segment revenue DE S HAKE 26,772,547 5,669,718 174,793 32,617,058
Segment results DEELR 544,345 145,156 11,142 700,643
Finance costs B ER (103,654)
596,989
Share of associates’ profits gl AN bl 37,592
Profit before taxation K %5 A& A 634,581
Taxation | (145,787)
Profit for the year SNpr | 488,794
Reportable segment assets ARESHBEE 4,985,592 1,228,681 34,056 6,248,329
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2010 are HEz—_FT-—ZFTF+=-HA=+—H
as follows: IEFEMDIHEENT -
Enterprise
Distribution systems IT services Group
A
8 ERS RHE R REH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAET TAT FAT
Total segment revenue 9 EP I AR R 19,617,859 6,455,313 139,428 26,212,600
Segment results DEELE 361,520 172,858 6,618 540,996
Finance costs % &M (60,552)
480,444
Share of associates’ profits vk lal AN bl 29,919
Profit before taxation % %% B v A 510,363
Taxation 18 (102,305)
Profit for the year F N 408,058
Reportable segment assets AIREDEABEE 4,483,112 1,718,974 30,924 6,233,010
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EEHERI>HER @
¥ ke )

AEENEFPERZLIL EEE—
AXFEBBAEEZLEE10%H

19. Turnover and Segment Information continve)

(@ Business segments (continued) @

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the

Group’s revenues. Distribution revenue from this customer amounted B - REZBEFPHDHEXE
to approximately HK$3,334,000,000 (2010: HK$1,983,000,000). #) 3 3,334,000,0008 (& — &
£ 1 1,983,000,0005 7T) °
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss b) AHREDHEAHEER
and assets EENHER
Profit i A
Reconciliation of segment profit to the profit for the year in the AR DR afEGEERRME
consolidated income statement is not presented as the segment HI 8 A m A AR R - BT R 2 51 4R
profit is the same as the profit for the year presented in the EERBZRADH 551 A B F A m Fl
consolidated income statement. ) ¥R o
2011 2010
S —z-=z4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHE T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets Al & D BB E 6,248,329 6,233,010
Goodwill [EES 327,689 330,370
Interest in associates PRB & N B A M = 277,047 252,005
Deferred tax assets EEFRIBEEE 49,622 42,008
Other receivables and prepayments H th fE W 708 K T8~ FOE 69,294 32,866
Cash and cash equivalents BeEMhBEEEY 1,573,134 1,015,251
Consolidated total assets SAMEE 8,545,115 7,905,510

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @
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19. EEHBERDHER »

i @ & E
AEBRNMBEEL S BEEELL

19. Turnover and Segment Information continue)

(c) Geographical information ()

The Group’s two business segments operate principally in North

Asia and South East Asia.

DRRAERE -

2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T

Revenue I 2=
North Asia it g8 24,701,806 18,766,450
South East Asia Ry 7,915,252 7,446,150
Total segment revenue o EB U =S B RE 32,617,058 26,212,600

Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer
is located.

WHEREEFPMEBRRE D

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Assets BE
North Asia it ga 4,305,212 4,367,760
South East Asia EXE 1,943,117 1,865,250
Reportable segment assets A ERE D EEE 6,248,329 6,233,010

Reportable segment assets are allocated based on where the
assets are located.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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20. Other Gains, Net

H i A F

21.

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHERT T T
Interest income F 8 U A 11,838 7,678
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE K&BE
and equipment Z BB (1,191) (322)
Net exchange gain P 5, Uy #5588 11,100 7,254
Gain on dilution and partial disposal of HE—RHKEBRARIRMmERS
a subsidiary to an associate DY RNl g - 52,075
Other HAth 10,490 7,845
32,237 74,530
Operating Profit 21. & m Al
Operating profit is derived after charging the following: LEBEFEMBR AT SIBMG
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Cost of inventories FEKAKR 30,971,852 25,058,127
Staff costs, including directors’ 8 T A
emoluments (BREESWS)
— Salaries, allowance and welfare 5% R REF 381,605 331,348
— Provident fund contributions —RESHK 53,757 44,336
Equity-settled share-based payment LARR 9 2 it 2 s A5 B R IB 8,920 86
Operating lease rentals in respect of MERERZ
premises and warehouse CEHERS 50,895 40,049
Auditors’ remuneration 1% R B 5,833 4,131
Depreciation of property, plant and L E =05
equipment B E 16,519 15,475
Written off of available-for-sale M AT ERBEE
financial assets - 798
Provision for and written off of inventories 73 & 8¢ 5 & Hifi 84 131,763 2,075
Provision for and written off of B REWRIBERE R
trade receivables i 55 56,365 25,810

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @
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22. Finance Costs 2. MBEHR
2011 2010
e —z-25
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FHET
Interest expense on: TAFEZFBFX
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX 25 34
— Unsecured bank borrowings —EEHRITEE 102,283 55,644
— Secured bank borrowings —HEMRITEE 721 4,266
— Secured mortgage loan —FERBEBESR 365 369
— Finance lease liabilities —MEHEAE 260 239
103,654 60,552
23. Taxation 23. B IR
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement RirEEmRINBR 2 BIE TS
represents:
2011 2010
—B-—fF —BFF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TExT FHET
Current taxation NEATIE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEB 58,464 12,795
— Overseas taxation — BN IR 91,865 83,898
(Oven)/under-provision of Hong Kong BEFERBNEH
Profits Tax in prior years (RBEBE), BETR (219) 340
Under/(over)-provision of overseas BEFEBINIIE
taxation in prior years BETR(BEEE) 1,679 (1,054)
Deferred taxation (Note 17) EERIE (M at17) (6,002 6,326
145,787 102,305

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31

December 2011.

Overseas taxation has been calculated based on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the entities comprising the Group operate.

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011
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23 . TaxatIO n (continued)

24.

29.

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
jﬁ%*ﬁ% MT? (lnﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =Z——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

23. BIE )

AEBEBBAEN 2 HBRERTER
KA EZEREBIERNT

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation & B2 BT s A 634,581 510,363
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% B RA16.5%t 8 2 Fi 18 104,706 84,210
Effect of different tax rates in different TRBH AR AR X
tax jurisdictions 2B 20,084 4,233
Income not subject to taxation BARB Z WA (1,820) (640)
Expenses not deductible for RIS S TEHRZ
taxation purposes =53 16,289 11,100
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BREFEZ
TREBE/(BREEE) 1,460 (714)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WEEREERIBEE
assets were recognised KB IE &R 1,688 1,066
Utilisation of tax losses previously {5 FH LA B R FER
not recognised HIaEE — (809)
Tax effect of withholding tax of profit R B B 2 B A BB
from the PRC subsidiaries MG 2 3,380 3,859
Taxation charge MBS H 145,787 102,305

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2011 is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to the extent of HK$61,439,000 (2010:
HK$49,342,000).

Proposed Dividends Attributable to Equity
Shareholders

24, AT ERIFR AEI
ey *J

HE-_ZE——F+-_HA=+—HBItE
B RARRUBHRRTEEZARQA
= FE AR &R A61,439,00078 JT
—E T4 49,342,000/ TT) ©

zagﬁﬂéﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ

70N

2011 2010
S —T-%45
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTEx FHET
Final dividend proposed after the REFE B EERRARE
balance sheet date of HK8 cents (2010: Nil) fi% 3% 18 AR 8 7 (1L
per ordinary share (ZE—=F : |) 100,000 =
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has not been REEHE B & Ta?i AR B R EE B
recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date. REEE
BHERERAT T FF#H



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

26. Earnings Per Share 26. B R & F
Basic HR
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year is based on the AEEERERBIDZRARR S
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of B A FE 1k % F1462,516,000%8 T (= & —
HK$462,516,000 (2010: HK$370,280,000) and the weighted average T 4 : 370,280,000/ 7T ) A K F N E &
of 1,256,898,000 shares (2010: 1,258,889,000 shares) in issue during 17 R% {7 2 hn#E S ¥9 £k 1,256,898,000 % (=
the year. T —T4E : 1,258,889,000%) Mat & °
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Issued ordinary shares at R—A—HBETERR (T
1 January (thousands) 1,258,889 1,258,889
Repurchase for own shares (thousands) BBl 74~ & & 5 (F &) (1,991) —
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt+=-—A=+—H
shares at 31 December (thousands) ERALINEE B E (T ET) 1,256,898 1,258,889
Basic earnings per share fig B A & A
(HK cents per share) (BB 36.80 29.41
Diluted e
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year is based on REEzEREBRINDRARAER
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of B A FE 1L 7)462,516,00008 T (= =
HK$462,516,000 (2010: HK$370,280,000) and the weighted average — = £ : 370,280,000 7T, ) K& A% 1) o0 4
number of shares of 1,260,398,000 (2010: 1,262,700,000 shares), 15 £1,260,398,000 % ( = & — & 4 :
calculated as follows: 1,262,700,000 %) s+ HE 40 T -
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF

Weighted average number of ordinary BBITEEARE TS

shares in issue (thousands) (F35h) 1,256,898 1,258,889
Adjustment for assumed conversion of BRREREEE R 2 AR

share options (thousands) G, 3,500 3,811
Weighted average number of ordinary SEEREBERA

shares for diluted earnings per share I3 % 00 #E S 15 2

(thousands) (F30) 1,260,398 1,262,700
Diluted earnings per share A% 858 2 A

(HK cents per share) (TR 36.70 29.32

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B % ¥R 2R Bt 5 (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =Z——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREREEEME

Emoluments
(@) Directors’ emoluments @ EE=EMe
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to RERNENKENTFTARAES
Directors of the Company during the year are as follows: 2B e BEEIT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Fees W 924 323
Other emoluments H A B &
— Basic salaries and —EAHE REEZRN
housing allowances 10,224 12,474
— Discretionary bonus —BBEIEA 4,448 12,166
— Contributions to pension scheme —IRIRET I = 405 418
— Equity-settled share-based — AR Sz i
payments HEHE IR 2,231 1
18,232 25,392
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 REBEEZE_ZE——FF+_A=+—
December 2011 is set out below: HEFE SESz2ME&E7 0
™
Basic Equity-
salaries and Contribution settled
housing Discretionary  to pension share-based
Name of Director Fees allowance bonus scheme payment Total
DY SN
EXFHFeR BINGTE Z2RZEEH
EEMHE we EEEE BB AL it B a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FTHERT THERT THERT THERT FERT
Executive Directors BITES
Li Jialin FEM - 5,200 800 300 697 6,997
Ong Wei Hiam, Wiliam &M 238 1,180 630 12 565 2,625
Chan Hoi Chau Fe M - 748 789 12 558 2,107
Mao Xianggian = A A1 - 2,353 2,229 81 115 4,778
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Tay Eng Hoe Bk A 303 743 - - 110 1,156
Liu Li 2150 62 - - - - 62
Independent non-executive Directors B JEH1TE =
Chan Po Fun, Peter fR T 2% 126 - - - 93 219
Li Wei ZiE 106 - - - 93 199
Ng Yat Cheung RAE 32 - - - - 32
Ni Zhenwei RARE 57 - - - - 57
924 10,224 4,448 405 2,231 18,232

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (48)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =ZF——F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREREEEMNSE

Emoluments ontinue) ()
(@) Directors’ emoluments continued) @ ES=SM=w
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 RBEE_ZT—ZTFF+_A=+—
December 2010 is set out below: HEFE SEFz2ME&E7 @
T~
Basic salaries Contribution  Equity-settled
and housing  Discretionary to pension  share-based
Name of Directors Fees allowance bonus scheme payment Total
VARR 9 3= 5
EXHEER RIKETE ZRERAH
BEEfA ok FREERM BB HR HIE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHT FHET FHET
Executive Directors HITES
Li Jialin FEM = 5,200 500 285 — 5,985
Tay Eng Hoe g5k A 3 3,223 9,494 32 4 12,756
Ong Wei Hiam, William FEN — 1,181 400 12 2 1,595
Chan Hoi Chau B8 M = 618 300 12 - 930
Mao Xianggian ERAT = 2,252 1,472 77 5 3,806

Independent non-executive Directors B EHTE S

Chan Po Fun, Peter PR X 25 120 — — = = 120

Ni Zhenwei 78 100 - - - — 100

Li Wei =18 100 = = = - 100

323 12,474 12,166 418 11 25,392

Directors’ emoluments disclosed above include approximately EXHBEBEZEEHE REN

HK$507,000 (2010: HK$320,000) paid to independent non- T8 3 31T E = 89 £9507,000%8
executive Directors. JL(ZZ—Z 4 : 320,000/57T) °

No emoluments have been paid to these individuals as an FABER L A+ 3 E B

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation (T —FF:TEIL) EAR

for loss of office during the year (2010: HK$NIl). BREREMAREELEE AR

SERZBBIELRERME-

During the year, no Director of the Company waived any RER ARAEEILERE RN
emoluments (2010: HK$NIl). EAME(ZT—FF: THT) °

@ VST HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2011



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt 5 ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =Z——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

27. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 2. EEREREEEME
Emoluments continueq) (#)
(b) Five highest paid individuals b REERSHFHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the AEBEFAZRAERRHALE
Group for the year included two (2010: three) Directors whose EWME(ZE—ZF =F)8F
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The BEZHMEEREXFES ZH
emoluments payable to the remaining three (2010: two) MARBE - REREZNTFEB=F
individuals during the year are as follows: ZE-TF:-WMB)ATZHeW
™
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Basic salaries and allowances EXRF & RERL 4,811 3,086
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 14,935 7,366
Contributions to pension schemes RRET I3k 49 672
19,795 11,124
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B F 5 EE

Number of individuals

AE
Emolument band [ e ] 2011 2010
—E-—-F —E-FF
HK$4,000,001-HK$4,500,000 4,000,001% 724,500,000/ 7T 2 —
HK$5,000,001-HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7 7T £ 5,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$5,500,001-HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7 7T & 6,000,000 7 7T - 1
HK$11,000,001-HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 7% 7T & 11,500,000 7% 7T 1 —

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (4&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =T ——F+=-_A=+—HBILFE

28. Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 28. R & BE &R EB R KM
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash BRBAIEFEKERTEE 2
generated from operations REFHEZHE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation & T BT A 634,581 510,363
Interest income B WA (11,838) (7,678)
Interest expense B X H 103,654 60,552
Depreciation of property, plant M- BER
and equipment HEITE 16,519 15,475
Share of associates’ profits pal () RN bl (37,592) (29,919)
Equity-settled share-based payment ARG 3 245 2 #E 7
45 & FhIg 8,920 86
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE KK
plant and equipment Z B8 1,191 322
Written off of available-for-sale 58 AT 4 1 B S
financial assets BE - 798
Gain on dilution and partial disposal of HE—EH B AR MmERS
a subsidiary to an associate W =Y /N ol € - (62,075)
Operating profit before working EEECEHAIZ
capital changes 7 T 715,435 497,924
Changes in working capital LBESEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b fE Y58 84,655 (657,130)
Inventories FE (158,325) (451,379)
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HAMmEMRIE 45,238 769,079
Net cash generated from operations KEFTISIR G R 687,003 258,494
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
jﬁ%*ﬁﬂsﬁ MT? (IHE~
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #E2=—Z——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

29. Commitments under Operating Leases

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

9. KFEMHEH N 2 &R

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H &x&H
RETAME 2 KEMEMALE Z AR
REESEBNAT

2011 2010

—EB—-—F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —F R 31,694 25,283
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF 47,955 29,284
79,649 54,567

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties and items
of plant and machinery and office equipment held under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

REBRZEANERANKLLEHEREZ
BEEEMARRRERBERE 2AHE
AN HOZNTFH-—BRRE—E2=%F"
ERBEHNTSHERAAGER - B E
HOBHAAEE -

BAZRERIE —T——F4R @



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 7% 3R 2% B 5 (4&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 2 =T ——F+=-_A=+—HBILFE

30. Related Party Transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

(@) Director’s quarter

The Group entered into a rental agreement with Joint Honour
Development Limited, a company in which Mr. Li Jialin, the
Chairman and an executive Director of the Company is a major
shareholder, in respect of a director’s quarter. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group paid a monthly rental of HK$200,000 to
Joint Honour Development Limited for the year ended 31
December 2011 (2010: HK$200,000).

(b) License fee

The Group also entered into an agreement with Kong Lung Ind
Co., a company in which Mr. Li Jialin is a major shareholder.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Group paid a monthly license fee
of HK$14,000 in respect of the China-Hong Kong Vehicle
License to Kong Lung Ind Co. with effect from 1 January 2011 (2010:
Nil)

(c) Key management compensation (including the
amounts disclosed in note 27)

30

BAEALRS

NTREREATETZIRS

(@

EEEE

AEEHEAQNREFERATES
TEMEEBETERRZAA
ETREEERARNE —HBEER
e —MhiEERE BREZD
F O AEBREBE-_ZT——F+
AT HLEFERERER
B R 2 7 X F A 200,000/ 7T
(ZZ—Z 4 : 200,000/ 7T) °

BRE

AEEBTHZTEMREERETER
RHOARBEEERRGI M
BIEZ S AEEE P B EH
W2 885 A 2 {8 B8 & 14,0007 7T T
BREEEQAR R=_FT——F—A
—BRER(CE—FE F)o

FTEEEAEHNES(EE
R EE27IRE 2 FIE)

2011 2010

—E-—F —ET—TF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Short-term employment benefits HHEEEEA 58,411 60,879
Other long-term employment benefits  H fth & HA (& & 18 7 3,091 1,041
61,502 61,920
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
B 75 3R 2% Bt & ()
For the year ended 31 December 2011 #E2=—Z——F+=-_A=+—HILFE

31. Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued but not
yet Effective for the Year ended 31 December
2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and five new standards which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements
—Presentation of items
and other comprehensive income

MBHRRNOZ7

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
statements

FAM KRS ERFE 105 -
REMBHRE

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests
in other entities

FAMBHEEAE 125 -
RENEMERNER
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement E BB SRS R FE 1357 -

ATEGHE

HKAS 27, Separate financial
statements (2011)

FEGHERSE 275 -

HKAS 28, Investments
in associates and joint ventures

BB GRS 285 ¢

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

ERETEANE 1R UEFTA)

—HAREMBE2EEANZT

BYMBERR(ZFE——F)

31.

REERRIMAEELENKRE

EREMBHSEANER BT A

—+
W Kt
2+

nII'H_\l_m‘mH'

Q0 3 e |11

I 22 ok
A1
s |
I N
&
-l
WE =N

i

ERFUMBRRTIEAY BES
AEMAGEEMREBEE_T——F+=
A=ZT-BLEFERRERBL RNZ
EMBHRERNZE TEITRAEAEH
R BREATHEAAEEERE :

1 July 2012
—T—=-—%+tHA—H

1 January 2013
—FT—=%—HA—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—Z-=¢—A—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—HA—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2015
—ZE-hF—H—H

AEBEAEFGELRFEITINERNERB
RzRBTE- 25/ RAMEFE
RITNAAIER A EBZRERERY B
MRERERNTE -

e
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Financial Summary

BB E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out below:

BEMIHIOT

AEBEBERLEVBRERZRENREER

Results
Nine months
Year ended Year ended ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March 31 March
2011 2010 2009 2009 2008
BE-E——% HEZZT— f¢ BE-_ZTZTNF HE_TTHhE 8=2-_ZTT/\F
+=A=+-8 +=A=t-B t=A=t-B =A=t-B =A=t-8
LEE FE IENER LFE IHFE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT FAT FTAT TAT
Turnover S 32,617,058 26,212,600 19,705,697 22,091,272 12,350,522
Profit before taxation BR 5% Al s A 634,581 510,363 420,714 318,414 329,263
Taxation I8 (145,787) (102,305) (100,887) (56,605) (69,710)
Profit for the year/period & /H R A 488,794 408,058 319,827 261,809 259,553
Attributable to: AT AT :
Equity Shareholders of RRAEEFEA 462,516 370,280 276,333 231,624 244,743
the Company
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR b 2 26,278 37,778 43,494 30,185 14,810
488,794 408,058 319,827 261,809 259,553
Assets and Liabilities
EEREE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March 31 March
2011 2010 2009 2009 2008
R=Z——% R-E—2F R-TBENF R-TTAF R-TENF
+=A=t-8 +-A=t+-B t-A=t-B =A=t+-A :H:-I——EI
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT FAT FAT FAT
Total assets BEE 8,545,115 7,905,510 6,391,828 4,755,011 5,095,669
Total liabilities waEE (5,747,886) (5,579,178) (4,494,639) (3,408,719) (3,906,095)
Total equity B 2,797,229 2,326,332 1,897,189 1,351,292 1,189,574
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